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2023 31

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1764

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

10 1,450
10 1,450
1,000
1,000
2023 30 UFJ
14499
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https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2003 26
)
) 2023
2023 480,000 6,960
144.99 480,000 144.99
1,000,000 1,000,000 4,499
)
2003 26

2009 27
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)
2023
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
(
1925
50
150
(
(
M@
2003 11 17
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
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TOPIX
JPX JPX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
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3.3
0.015
15,000
0.68
0.03 0.25
0.22 0.40
0.35
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05 50,000
0.02
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2023
49,446,885.54 96.02
1,322,044.66 2.57
50,768,930.20 98.59
727,512.06 1.41
51,496,442.26
100.00
7,466,469,163
2023
US TREAS BDS 3.625% 2053
3.625 4,000,000.00| 95.94| 3,837,635.88| 95.81| 3,832,500.00| 7.44
02/15/53 15
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 3,948,236.85| 99.06| 3,911,110.39| 87.33| 3,447,799.41 6.70
04/15/44 15
US TREAS BDS 3.625% 2053
3.625 3,000,000.00| 95.22| 2,856,705.55| 95.94| 2,878,125.00| 5.59
05/15/53 15
UMBS P#SD7556 3% 2052
3 2,311,737.66| 91.32| 2,111,006.18| 88.75| 2,051,636.61 3.98
08/01/52
UMBS P#MA4600 3.5% 2052
3.5 1,546,403.78 | 93.42| 1,444,688.77| 91.16| 1,409,770.58| 2.74
05/01/52
UMBS P#SD8286 4% 2053
4 1,466,963.31| 96.52| 1,415,981.46| 93.85| 1,376,728.81 2.67
01/01/53
UMBS P#RA7673 4.5% 2052
4.5 1,423,014.78| 95.96| 1,365,455.99| 96.24| 1,369,539.88| 2.66
07/01/52
FNR 2021-33 AZ 2.5% 2051
2.5 2,370,164.51| 62.19| 1,473,888.12| 57.50| 1,362,761.40| 2.65
06/25/51 25
UMBS P#SD1460 3% 2052
3 1,499,401.01| 91.95( 1,378,668.17| 88.83| 1,331,929.06| 2.59
05/01/52
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
10 3.26 1,575,000.00| 100.00 | 1,574,939.97| 83.71| 1,318,373.91 2.56
11/25/54 11 25
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
11 2.5 1,500,000.00| 96.76| 1,451,363.79| 78.22| 1,173,266.55| 2.28
12/25/49 12 25
UMBS P#BS7451 5.05% 2030
12 5.05 1,146,000.00 | 100.22 | 1,148,575.41| 99.51| 1,140,400.38| 2.21
01/01/30
TPMT 2022-1 Al V/R 2062
13 3.75 1,065,106.99 | 94.85( 1,010,280.29| 92.13 981,295.64 1.91
07/25/62 25
US TREAS NTS 3.375% 2033
14 3.375 1,000,000.00| 98.92 989,183.08 | 96.39 963,906.25 1.87
05/15/33 15
VERUS 2023-INV1 V/R 2068
15 5.999 948,932.92 | 100.00 948,922.18| 99.03 939,772.02 1.82
02/25/68 25
0BX 2023-NQM1 Al V/R 2062
16 6.12 943,901.89 | 100.00 943,890.19| 99.47 938,876.46 1.82
11/25/62 11 25
GNR 2013-131 PY 3.5% 2043
17 3.5 1,000,000.00| 93.98 939,765.90 | 91.08 910,764.30 1.77
09/16/43 16
EFMT 2022-4 A3 V/R 2067
18 5.9 934,315.51| 97.35 909,596.30 | 96.62 902,746.86 1.75
09/25/67 25
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
19 3.5 900,458.47 | 102.27 920,937.32| 93.26 839,806.37 1.63
01/01/46
UMBS P#RA7773 4% 2052
20 4 863,950.56 | 96.28 831,807.99| 93.88 811,076.27 1.58
08/01/52
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PRET 2022-NPL3 A V/R 2052

21 5.9266 835,301.49| 96.84 808,945.97 | 96.33 804,636.82 1.56
06/25/52 25
VERUS 2023-1 Al V/R 2067

22 5.85 653,818.17 | 100.00 653,815.97 | 98.70 645,329.26 1.25
12/25/67 12 25
PRPM 2021-2 A2 V/R 2026

23 3.77 600,000.00 | 100.00 599,998.54 | 88.10 528,609.54 1.03
03/25/26 25
AFFRM 2023-A A 6.61% 2028

24 6.61 500,000.00 | 100.00 500,000.00| 99.49 497,467.00| 0.97
01/18/28 18
JTWN 2019-1A A2 V/R 2032

25 7.4004 500,000.00 | 99.66 498,320.83| 98.84 494,183.50| 0.96
04/20/32 20
JTWN 2021-16A A V/R 2034

26 6.4551 500,000.00 | 97.41 487,069.96 | 97.41 487,033.50| 0.95
07/25/34 25
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046

27 3.5 520,114.32| 102.36 532,374.28| 93.13 484,371.16| 0.94
08/01/46
COLT 2023-1 Al V/R 2068

28 6.048 481,535.97 | 100.00 481,535.97 | 99.23 477,815.241 0.93
04/25/68 25
SHMLT 2020-SH1 M V/R 2050

29 3.223 500,000.00 | 100.00 499,997.35| 94.37 471,873.50| 0.92
01/28/50 28
SOFI 2017-E B 3.49% 2040

30 3.49 492,885.95| 99.76 491,694.55| 94.52 465,857.37 0.90
11/26/40 11 26
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2022 2023
2018 28 8,686,382.00 1,259,438,526 9.87 1,431
2019 28 2,762,565.00 400,544,299 9.87 1,431
2020 29 2,527,093.00 366,403,214 10.40 1,508
2021 28 3,912,075.00 567,211,754 10.06 1,459
2022 28 2,334,065.00 338,416,084 9.64 1,398
2023 28 1,183,859.00 171,647,716 8.27 1,199
2022 1,814,599.61 263,098,797 9.04 1,311
1,599,457.00 231,905,270 8.84 1,282
1,527,429.30 221,461,974 8.43 1,222
10 1,243,777.00 180,335,227 8.16 1,183
11 1,187,486.35 172,173,646 8.31 1,205
12 1,181,563.48 171,314,889 8.26 1,198
2023 1,211,276.66 175,623,003 8.47 1,228
1,183,859.00 171,647,716 8.27 1,199
1,122,294.76 162,721,517 8.41 1,219
962,481.80 139,550,236 8.45 1,225
950,482.86 137,810,510 8.34 1,209
943,604.08 136,813,156 8.27 1,199
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 4,489,686,685 9.93 1,440
2019 28 23,351,368.00 3,385,714,846 10.05 1,457
2020 29 39,075,715.00 5,665,587,918 10.73 1,556
2021 28 19,700,876.00 2,856,430,011 10.50 1,522
2022 28 11,429,343.00 1,657,140,442 10.19 1,477
2023 28 8,746,633.00 1,268,174,319 8.87 1,286
2022 9,826,490.09 1,424,742,798 9.61 1,393
9,535,197.00 1,382,508,213 9.41 1,364

8,896,327.42 1,289,878,513 8.94 1,296

10 8,028,513.02 1,164,054,103 8.67 1,257

11 8,196,732.51 1,188,444,247 8.85 1,283

12 8,762,663.75 1,270,498,617 8.82 1,279

2023 8,996,669.53 1,304,427,115 9.06 1,314
8,746,633.00 1,268,174,319 8.87 1,286

8,537,955.94 1,237,918,232 8.99 1,303

8,475,864.00 1,228,915,521 9.04 1,311

8,246,873.95 1,195,714,254 8.95 1,298

8,165,464.17 1,183,910,650 8.90 1,290

41/220



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2022 28 533,542,314 9,111
2023 28 406,964,652 7,594
2022 486,227,887 8,502
474,081,819 8,288

451,170,072 7,887

10 407,547,015 7,606

11 413,895,988 7,725

12 409,604,888 7,644

2023 417,915,268 7,799
406,964,652 7,594

436,969,193 7,686

436,804,661 7,683

355,057,327 7,549

350,646,102 7,454
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 29 4,110,797,927 10,045
2021 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2022 28 3,212,368,614 9,437
2023 28 5,714,622,038 7,965
2022 3,042,391,888 8,840
2,985,895,678 8,632

2,829,749,093 8,190

10 2,732,656,862 7,913

11 2,780,220,256 8,051

12 5,728,054,712 7,988

2023 5,859,648,659 8,164
5,714,622,038 7,965

5,787,599,917 8,039

5,796,028,615 8,050

5,705,379,815 7,923

5,775,813,001 7,840
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0.12 17 0.06 9
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
2023 0.02 3 0.06 9
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
1.40 203 0.72 104
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60 40
120 80
120 80
120 80
120 80
120 80
2023 10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
700 480

-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75

2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48

7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84

-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18

-1.79 -1.81 -2.82 -2.35

-11.72 -11.78 -15.33 -14.75

100x%
10.00
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
30,822 177,738 242,038
(30,822) (177,738) (242,038)
1,269 100,173 143,134
(1,269) (100,173) (143,134)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929, 636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698, 832) (3,642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
65,867 820,866 1,121,150
(65.,867) (820, 866) (1,121,150)
89,563 225,161 985,552
(89,563) (225,161) (985,552)
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139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
17,034 7,844 58,561
(17,034) (7,844) (58,561)

66 5,038 53,589
(66) (5,038) (53,589)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588,854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
2,526 34,245 340,386
(2,526) (34,245) (340, 386)
382,562 5,513 717,435
(382,562) (5,513) (717,435)
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10 0.001 100 0.01

0.001 10,000
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0.001 0.001 0.01 0.01

0.001 0.001
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2023 28
2023 28
61,364,631 54,722,660 7,934,238
1,909,034 276,791
8,020 1,163
6,033 875
294,990 42,771
27,719 4,019
56,968,456 8,259,856
1,309,971 189,933
8,855 1,284
104,629 15,170
33,549 4,864
27,935 4,050
9,639 1,398
9,526 1,381
6,644 963
3,719 539
30 4
578,535 83,882
4,311 625
2,097,343 304,094
54,871,113 7,955,763
68,902,169 9,990,125
(14,031,056) (2,034,363)
54,871,113 7,955,763
406,964,652
53,589 7,594
5,714,622,038
717,435 7,965
1,183,859
143,134 8.27 1,199
8,746,633
985,552 8.87 1,286

144.99
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2023 28

1,978,897 286,920
1,978,897 286,920
281,436 40,805
248,325 36,005
97,083 14,076
38,624 5,600
15,001 2,175
10,001 1,450
8,278 1,200
73,792 10,699
772,540 112,011
1,206,357 174,910
(1,989,948) (288,523)
(5,273,636) (764,624)
(7,263,584) (1,053,147)
(4,366,829) (633,147)
(456,057) (66,124)
(4,822,886) (699,270)
(12,086,470) (1,752,417)
(10,880,113) (1,577,508)

144.99
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2023 28

1,206,357 174,910
(7,263,584) (1,053,147)
(4,822,886) (699,270)
(10,880,113) (1,577,508)
(50,541) (7,328)
(211,535) (30,670)
(42,982) (6,232)
(127,638) (18,506)
(432,696) (62,737)
66 4,052 587
382,562 22,691,594 3,290,054
1,269 11,085 1,607
89,563 810,524 117,518
5,038 (280,656) (40,692)
5,513 (376,083) (54,528)
100,173 (887,652) (128,701)
225,161 (2,075,996) (300,999)
19,896,868 2,884,847
8,584,059 1,244,603
46,287,054 6,711,160
54,871,113 7,955,763

144.99
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144.99

2023 28

(10,880,113) (1,577,508)
(49,672,734) (7,202,050)
35,509,950 5,148,588

(51,758) (7,504)
1,989,948 288,523
4,366,829 633,147

456,057 66,124

(126,083) (18,281)
20,088 2,913
9,639 1,398
(2,499) (362)
@n 13

5,509 799
2,195 318
58,924 8,543
3,147 456
(11,395) (1,652)
(18,322,383) (2,656,562)
23,512,773 3,409,117
(3,652,712) (529,607)
(432,696) (62,737)
19,427,365 2,816,774
1,104,982 160,211

804,052 116,579
1,909,034 276,791
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2023 28
2023 2023
28 28 2023 28 2023 28
9,111 9,437 9.64 1,398 10.19 1,477
(@) 201 245 0.28 4 0.29 42
(1,598) (1,637) (1.41) (204) (1.49) (216)
(1,397) (1,392) (1.13) (164) (1.20) (174)
(120) (80) (0.24) (35) 0.12) @7
7,594 7,965 8.27 1,199 8.87 1,286
(15.41) (14.83) (11.82) (11.86)
406,965 5,714,622 1,184 171,668 8,747 1,268,228
2.50 1.85 1.76 1.76
2.45 2.90 3.16 3.15

@

144.99
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2023 28
Q)
99.7
99.7
54.0
Affirm Asset Securitization Trust 2023-A
Class A
500,000 6.61% due 01/18/28(1) 0.9 497,438
Aligned Data Centers lIssuer LLC Class B
200,000 2.48% due 08/15/46(1) 0.3 169,492
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
537,808 5.50% due 04/25/35 0.7 378,958
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
448,343 4.98% due 06/25/47(2) 0.7 361,419
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
802,652 1.34% due 05/15/50(3) 0.1 34,057
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,328,471 0.77% due 07/15/60(3) 0.1 33,793
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,796,319 0.69% due 02/15/61(3) 0.1 49,589
BANK 2021-BNK35 Class A5
125,000 2.29% due 06/15/64 0.2 101,232
BANK 2021-BNK38 Class A5
110,000 2.52% due 12/15/64 0.2 89,752
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 7.82% due 03/15/37(1.(2) 0.1 53,655
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2020-C8 Class A5
125,000 2.04% due 10/15/53 0.2 100,721
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2021-C12 Class A5
100,000 2.69% due 11/15/54 0.1 83,063
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2022-C18 Class XD
1,000,000 2.15% due 12/15/55(1),(3) 0.3 160,187
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al1
250,006 4.35% due 02/25/47(3) 0.4 216,878
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1A1
82,594 5.87% due 08/25/37(2) 0.1 81,195
Benchmark 2019-B13 Mortgage Trust Class A3
159,000 2.70% due 08/15/57 0.2 136,055
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class A4
125,000 1.55% due 09/15/53 0.2 100,458
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
993,041 1.77% due 09/15/53(3) 0.1 76,246
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,517,791 0.73% due 09/15/48(1),(3) 0.1 55,656
Benchmark 2021-B30 Mortgage Trust Class A5
125,000 2.58% due 11/15/54 0.2 102,408
BX 2022-MVRK Mortgage Trust Class C
100,000 6.83% due 03/15/39(1.(2) 0.2 96,716
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(@)

BX Trust 2018-EXCL Class C
9,780 6.56% due 09/15/37(1).(2 0.0 9,658
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
129,000 3.94% due 12/09/41(1).(3) 0.2 102,709
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41(1.(3) 0.1 62,765
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
320,194 4.78% due 10/25/36(2) 0.6 307,153
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,140,590 1.23% due 05/10/50(3) 0.1 44,322
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2A1
543,167 4.82% due 04/25/46(2) 0.8 447,182
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
1,872,100 1.09% due 03/11/47(3) 0.0 12,169
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,474,073 0.72% due 11/10/48(3) 0.0 22,535
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
321,160 1.11% due 04/14/50(3) 0.0 11,232
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(1).(3) 0.1 73,532
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(1).(3) 0.1 69,904
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-GC46
Class AS
117,000 2.92% due 02/15/53(3) 0.2 97,952
CLNC 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
100,000 6.23% due 08/20/35(1).(2) 0.2 97,511
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
7,136,749 0.02% due 07/10/45(3) 0.0 14
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,038,343 0.65% due 07/10/48(3) 0.0 24,282
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,238,014 1.06% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 55,581
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
102,619 2.26% due 08/15/37(1) 0.2 92,189
CSMC 2021-B33 Class Al
100,000 3.05% due 10/10/43(1) 0.1 84,893
DBJPM 20-C9 Mortgage Trust Class B
333,000 2.57% due 08/15/53 0.5 252,588
Ellington Financial Mortgage Trust 2022-4
Class A3
986,473 5.90% due 09/25/67(1).(%) 1.7 957,883
Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-2
Class D
250,000 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.4 234,923
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(@)
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
488,426 3.00% due 05/25/48 0.8 435,990
FIVE 2023-V1 Mortgage Trust Class D
100,000 6.41% due 02/10/56(1).(3) 0.2 87,426
FNMA REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 2.1 1,178,327
FNMA-Aces Class AlX
380,957 2.46% due 05/25/30(3) 0.6 339,765
FNMA-Aces Class 10
2,527,073 1.28% due 07/25/29(3) 0.2 135,609
FNMA-Aces Class X2
1,620,534 1.24% due 03/25/31(3) 0.2 108,497
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
420,450 0.00% due 07/15/43(2) 0.5 283,392
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
3,909,000 3.00% due 04/15/44 6.3 3,455,115
Freddie Mac REMICS Class SD
2,291,795 0.00% due 08/25/51(2) 0.0 28,473
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
286,584 3.97% due 12/15/44(1),(%) 0.5 257,943
Government National Mortgage Association
Class El
720,125 3.00% due 07/20/50 0.2 105,024
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IL
1,268,356 3.00% due 06/20/51 0.4 195,753
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
2,049,945 0.59% due 05/16/61(3) 0.2 104,757
1,679,410 0.60% due 04/16/64(3) 0.2 91,690
2,111,140 0.72% due 10/16/63(3) 0.3 144,843
1,715,454 0.82% due 02/16/63(3) 0.2 109,429
1,826,209 0.88% due 08/16/64(3) 0.2 122,871
1,647,351 0.98% due 05/16/63(3) 0.2 113,248
1,459,812 1.14% due 08/16/62(3) 0.2 109,500
1,426,754 2.50% due 11/20/51 0.3 189,487
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IW
1,518,031 2.50% due 09/20/50 0.4 195,554
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Kl
688,895 3.00% due 02/20/51 0.2 103,776
Government National Mortgage Association
Class PY
1,000,000 3.50% due 09/16/43 1.7 919,845
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Tl
881,949 3.00% due 09/20/51 0.2 130,765
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class A
100,000 5.71% due 12/15/36(1).(2) 0.2 98,619
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,356,848 0.97% due 02/10/48(3) 0.0 18,752
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
850,513 1.01% due 05/10/50(3) 0.0 29,442
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Q)

GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA

939,949 1.08% due 08/10/50(3) 0.1 34,510
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA

1,220,756 0.67% due 02/13/53(3) 0.1 38,635

Hardee®s Funding LLC Class A23

239,375 5.71% due 06/20/48(1) 0.4 224,292
J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D

120,000 6.25% due 07/15/36(1).(2 0.2 116,699
Jamestown CLO XIl Ltd. Class A2

500,000 6.96% due 04/20/32(1).(2) 0.9 494,836
Jamestown CLO XVI Ltd. Class A

500,000 6.02% due 07/25/34(1).(2) 0.9 491,022

JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
1,502,734 0.80% due 07/15/47(3) 0.0 7,504
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B
100,000 3.40% due 08/15/49(3) 0.2 85,375
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX
67,000 5.36% due 07/05/33(1),(3) 0.1 47,570
JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E
100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(1).(3) 0.1 66,176
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2014-C23 Class D
100,000 3.98% due 09/15/47(1).(3) 0.2 85,679
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA
823,791 1.11% due 11/15/48(3) 0.0 13,589
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class B
107,000 3.29% due 05/13/53(3) 0.2 86,648
JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA

909,375 1.65% due 05/13/53(3) 0.1 62,447
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust 2020-GS4 Class Al

253,346 3.25% due 02/25/60(1),(%) 0.4 249,330
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2

1,384,203 4.84% due 10/25/36(2) 0.8 433,347

Med Trust 2021-MDLN Class G

99,704 9.84% due 11/15/38(1).(2) 0.2 93,451

Merrill Lynch Alternative Note Asset Trust
Series 2007-0AR5 Class 1Al
862,845 2.91% due 10/25/47(3) 0.5 287,839
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA

917,836 0.95% due 12/15/47(3) 0.0 10,891
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 2017-HR2 Class C
100,000 4.32% due 12/15/50(3) 0.2 87,063
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(@)

1,011,337

1,066,031

861,805

1,680,319

113,000

991,980

252,579

303,678

879,399

600,000

355,681

956,498

263,057

635,400

500,000

250,000

77,000

500,000

197,500

2,430

1,102,945

887,513

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA

1.44% due 08/15/49(3)

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA

0.65% due 12/15/49(3)

Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA

1.32% due 06/15/50(3)

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA

0.64% due 11/15/52(3)

Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D

3.75% due 12/15/38(1)

0BX 2023-NQM1 Trust Class Al

6.12% due 11/25/62(1).(3)

PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A

7.27% due 05/27/23(1).(2)

PRET 2021-RN2 LLC Class Al

1.74% due 07/25/51(1).(%)

PRET 2022-NPL3 LLC Class Al

5.93% due 06/25/52(1),(%)

PRPM 2021-2 LLC Class A2

3.77% due 03/25/26(1).(3)

RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3
6.00% due 09/25/36

RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All

5.08% due 06/25/37(2)

RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3
3.97% due 01/25/37(2)

Renaissance Home Equity Loan Trust 2006-4
Class AF2

5.29% due 01/25/37(4)

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B

3.49% due 11/26/40(1)

SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C

4.16% due 11/26/40(1)

Soho Trust 2021-SOHO Class B

2.70% due 08/10/38(1).(3)

Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1

3.22% due 01/28/50(1).(3)

Taco Bell Funding LLC Class A23

2.54% due 08/25/51(1)

Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E

8.05% due 11/11/34(1).(2)

Towd Point Mortgage Trust 2022-1 Class Al
3.75% due 07/25/62(1).(3)

UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA

1.52% due 06/15/50(3)
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0.1 39,390

0.0 20,760

0.1 30,905

0.1 53,597

0.2 99,637

1.8 984,044

0.4 249,267

0.5 279,360

1.6 853,221

0.9 523,197

0.5 275,854

0.7 379,058

0.5 257,137

0.4 201,341

0.9 474,253

0.4 221,369

0.1 55,271

0.9 471,613

0.3 155,915

0.0 2,353

1.9 1,026,066

0.1 43,119
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(@D)
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class B
100,000 4.09% due 08/15/50(3) 0.2 86,842
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,013,187 1.12% due 08/15/50(3) 0.1 64,193
Upstart Pass-Through Trust Series 2021-ST7
Class A
89,679 1.85% due 09/20/29(1) 0.2 86,984
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63(1) 0.7 403,459
Verus Securitization Trust 2023-1 Class Al
696,150 5.85% due 12/25/67(1).(4) 1.2 688,354
Verus Securitization Trust 2023-INV1 Class Al
1,000,000 6.00% due 02/25/68(1).(3) 1.8 997,310
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54(1).(3) 2.5 1,379,842
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
394,264 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.4 206,154

Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE5 Trust Class 2A3
1,194,966 3.72% due 10/25/36(2) 0.8 452,104
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
674,923 1.57% due 03/15/59(3) 0.0 25,232
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
839,784 0.97% due 07/15/50(3) 0.0 26,396
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,446,973 0.83% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 59,296
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2Al

344,758 4.51% due 10/25/36(3) 0.6 313,826
29,637,459
25.4

U.S. Treasury Bond
5,400,000 2.38% due 05/15/51 7.2 3,944,321
5,250,000 3.00% due 08/15/52 8.0 4,391,953

U.S. Treasury Note
5,500,000 4.13% due 11/15/32 10.2 5,582,500
13,918,774

20.3
Fannie Mae Pool

365,114 3.00% due 11/01/46 0.6 329,189
1,056,856 3.50% due 01/01/46 1.8 984,068
304,556 3.50% due 02/01/51 0.5 280,239
1,577,800 3.50% due 05/01/52 2.6 1,437,543
1,146,000 5.05% due 01/01/30 2.1 1,142,752
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(@)

Freddie Mac Gold Pool
539,519 3.50% due 08/01/46 0.9 502,374
Freddie Mac Pool

463,693 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.8 416,435
1,548,666 3.00% due 05/01/52 2.5 1,374,403
2,370,980 3.00% due 08/01/52 3.8 2,104,193
872,071 4.00% due 08/01/52 1.5 818,966
1,490,821 4.00% due 01/01/53 2.5 1,399,113
GNMA 11 Pool
436,907 2.50% due 08/20/51 0.7 377,152
11,166,427
54,722,660
61,364,631 54,722,660
61,364,631 99.7 54,722,660
0.3 148,453
100.0 54,871,113
(7,955,762,674 )
(1)144A 1933 144A
(2)2023 28 Floating Rate
(3)2023 28 Variable Rate
(4)2023 28
144.99
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Brown

BrOt?erS 26,315 2023 30 (194) o* 0*

Harriman &

Co.

CITI PB 424,473,456 2023 30 (3.167,354) (38,134) (38,134)

CITI PB 126,610 2023 30 (16,985,143) 1,396 1,396

1,396 (38,134) (36,738)

Brown

Brothers

Harriran & 19,200 2023 30 (143) @) @

Co.

CITI PB 6,015,185,060 2023 30 (44,884 ,366) (540,399) (540,399)

Brown

ﬁrOtherS 17,951 2023 30 (2,407,200) 205 205

arriman &

Co.

CITI PB 679,648 2023 30 (91,302,019) 6,569 6,569

CITI PB 1,773,417 2023 30 (237,909,242) 19,549 19,549
26,323 (540,401) (514,078)

0.50

751220



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 28
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
UFJ
UFJ SMBC
FASB ASC

946

76/220



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GAAP

GAAP

12

GAAP

77/220



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 28

2023 28
54,722,660 54,722,660
27,719 27,719
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401
35
30 790,762
38
29 4,487,780
)
)
) )
4,632,449 27,891,197 2,334,065 11,429,343 46,287,054
4,052 22,691,594 11,085 810,524 23,517,255
(280,656)  (376,083) (887,652)  (2,075,996)  (3.620,387)
(50,541)  (211,535) (42,982) (127,638) (432,696)
(1,317,640) (8,042,216) (230,657)  (1,289,600) (10,880,113)
2,987,664 41,952,957 1,183,859 8,746,633 54,871,113
58,561 340,386 242,038 1,121,150 1,762,135
66 382,562 1,269 89,563 473,460
(5,038) (5,513) (100,173) (225,161) (335,885)
53,589 717,435 143,134 985,552 1,899,710
55.75 58.48 8.27 8.87
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CITI PB 578,533 (27,514) 551,019
578,535 (27,516) 551,019
o
2023 28
27,719 (578,535)
2023 28
(5,278,141) (456,057)
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2023 28 281,436 2023 28
27,935
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05 50,000
2023 28 97,083
2023 28 33,549
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COVID-19
12
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LIBOR
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR

LIBOR

190,868
1,457 8,496

533,668

579,068
216,834

56,960

86/220



DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2023

[Expressed in United States Dallar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Aseryad otfar eupenisel
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et Azeet Valem por Uinis

LY Wagnkhly Destn bt ion Cless 7 008 984,652 + 53,509 Uink s ot anding]

LB S i-Annual Ditvibetion Dl J0Y 5714630008 & T 435 Uity dat standingd
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0 54,722 080
L9003, (i34
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60X

294,530

27,119

968 456
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|

L3057
8,855
10k ETR
43,543
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[ X220
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30
576,535
L e b

PR TR
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o
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
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e
Totml Irverstment [rooess
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Dustributor s fees
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Prof evsinnal feed
Trustee fees
Trandor agent e
At g o g 1 T
(ther anperaes
Total Ecpinines

et I tment Incema

Renlived guingfflaiies) snd changs in live el mp [ elap d
Riashpied g o
I gRm e i smories
Foemign curmency transeoions wnd forward fonsgn currency dadhinge Do nbracts
Nt reakired lozoe
Onarsge i urresl red sppresat oo dspoecanon]
Arredelln el i e
Foreign curmercy trandations and foreerd bore pr currency exchangs corfrects
Mg eFangs in unieslined dapri@icn
Mo rpalepd Sl RaNQE i L Bai el LRt wed Gie o fEo

et decrenss in net pdiet resuling from eperstion

S0 1978 837
LarLEay

81,436
248,338
TS
06
15,001
10,001
aim
TH T
TILEAD

L0637

{LDERIEEN
(5. 2TARI6)
(T.26A504)

18,356.829)
{456,057}

i, 873 806)

§ L2086 470)

LSD
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
|Expressed in United States Dallar)
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LD Sami-Annusl Distrbotion Qe
Torml Distribeions
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Lheieg
A Waonthiy Dagribation aes (56 Units)
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LISD helanit by 0w i Bastesen Qa1 269 Urena)
LD Sami-Anrusd Ditbrbotion s {BI.563 Uins)

et b e

Y bcnithly Deptrilotegen Clasd (5035 Unaq)

I S tnnuall Destrbagicn Chass: (% 519 Units]

IS0 ot iy Dest n bateren Ol | LODL 1723 Liniks )

LED Sami-Annusl Drprdoeann Caes (325 161 Unad)
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Ered ol your

i 1, 20, 35T
¥, 263, 504)
4,832,886)

(10 Ea0 113p

|50,541)
{241,535)
[LFRGF ]
LI7.650)
FERET)

4,052
22,691,504
11,085
Gi0,524

[AB0.656)
(376,083
(BB7.E52)
[3.075.5986)
L8506, BEH

—

45, 27,054
G0 S4BFLLLY
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
|Expressed in United States Dallar)
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Purghins of mnesim et
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ef amortration and {sccretion)] of preméum s and disoounts on corporate deb® okl gations and ghort term
iR
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B o iRarE Y Fecein abla
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Dvcreoss n soooed trustes fees
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Carhard fomign currenoy at and of year
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LR ]

151,758}

1,909,980
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(R
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

1P Monthly 1P Sambdrrual USD Monthly  USD Sesifnnis]
Biitribution Clasr  Ditribution €y Bidribution Clare Distribution Clae
For the Yaar Eradeal  For the Year Ended  Forthe Year Ended  For tha Year Ended
Felwuary 28, 27023 FelwuaryZ8, 3023 February 28, 2033 Februsny I8, 2023

et Aszat Vialue, Bagreing of yewr i 5,111 F FA4FT 5D DEd  USD L1019
Met irveestmenet moom et Furl | 2% ¥ ] 0.2
siet reaiaed wnd e oal ped s {1,538} {1,637} {La1) (1451
BoE il i AT SRR e g o Sl o i [1397) 0 392 [THE [1 2‘:;-]
Ltz d srbutiong {1 [BOY {0240 (213
hiex Aszat Vi, end ol year Fr 758 7RSS LD 837 USD 887
Total refurn [T [$ER ] (118 | B8 660
bbet amsart s endl of yarar {00 5] P D665 Pr STIEEXD 5D LG WD fTaT
Aatio of Eupenses b0 average Fiel BEsES L5 LB5% L7E% L7E%
Fakin ol Pt Rookim et | Ao B v e age N

wpnat 5 LA5% 3.9, 318% ER LY

= Calcadited weing serige Units gaddanding for the yesr

Thit oot parrym g foted ane an integral part of these lindnasl statements,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
February 28, 2023
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
Primipal % of Nat
At Dhad Haiats FairValue
VD INCERSL SECLIMITIES ()
LMITED STATEL S9FN)
ASLIT-LACKED SUCURIFIES £ 00}
At A4 Setr et ion Trda XS desi s
LB SORODE  EE1% dusd i1 5% (157] 0408
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ELANA 20T BHE TS Class &5
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BN 2001 -RACIE Clatiad
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usp 1,000,000 LAEE dus 2SN ax Len1eT
Bapar S R Truit 25071 Clage 201
LS FELORE  A3SN dus 03354 L] ILEETE
Bear Rewve Apsed Backed Secunties | Tt 2007-HEG O 140
1] HLAFE ST che OR/5I7 i BLI¥E
Duerucrnierk TLSBLD Meortpigs Trudt Clagg A3
1] 153,000 3 TO dos 815597 ol 156,085
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1] 175008 L3N due 13A 5% ol o058
Barshmak 025815 Mortgage Traft Clad X4
] EETNFH 1. TP dhus 39,198 ot T
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{11 AT, 0L TG chus (191 5 g Tt [ % E5E%
Berehmak 1071-830 Mortgege Trast Cliss 25
1] 1TH000 LNk 1A% L& L=
B 3032 -MVEK Mot gage Trust Oass ©
15] 100,000 GREN due g3 5 el ol BETIE
I Tt JELRENCL Cling
1] ST £ L% du 098 /yrum o LY
B Tt S0EROC1] Suas B
1] EPNO0E 35 due § 20 i o1 iR
B Tt SRL9-0C1] Clags B
LHD 070,000 LR dum [ 21058 BUR [ &1 376
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(1] 1184 ATEN e 1025 T 07155
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{15+ LU83380 LIS dum 0510300 LR LLEF
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] SALLEY 46N dusda29fan o 4anie
CRigroug Commensisl Mok pape Tret 191 8-GC19 Olaw M
D L7 100 1 s 3 LT ae FERLL]
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(=] LATOTY QTN due L1 LT FFE L
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] AR LIS due a4 e 1L
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] 100,000 130%due 270/ RN al T
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Thie decodmparny g rotes ane an integral part of these finandal statemments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued}
February 28, 2023
{Expressed in United States Dallar)
Primepal % of het
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LED LEZE IS QLEN o ELEEAM %] L3ATL
S0 1647351 50 due 35,1 6530 [ & 113,248
0] LARAALT LA 581520 0l OB =S
LSl LADE,TEA 150 dus 112051 (%] LTS |
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2023

{Expressed in United States Dallar)
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Thie decodmparny®ng rotes ane an integral part of these finandal statemments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2023
{Expressed in United States Dallar)

Primcpal
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G400
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8§ 8 8 8 B

384 TR

5400, 000
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8,500 60
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§EEEE
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FESED IMCORAE SECURTTIES. {0 T10) (oantinued)
URETED STATES 99,7 %) (reatinued)

ASAT-MACHE D SECURTTIES (000 Coonlinued)
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Pt el s OOT-EAEC] Tru Clam ad

AT due 01,0537
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Thie decodmparny g rotes ane an integral part of these finandal statemments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued}
February 28, 2023
[{Expressed in United States Dallar)
Primepal % of Bt
Qurra Amgart & Dian orl £ pats FairValus
FESED IMCORAE SECURTTIES. {0 T10) (oantinued)
URETED STATES 99,7 %) (reatinued)
BADRT GG 1R [ SEOURETIES (30, 1%) dpan tinmed)
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Thie poooa parrymng foted ane an integral part of these lindnasl statements,

96/220



i

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For thi Year Ended February 28, 2023

CRGAMIZATION

Doubdel e Toral Return Furd {the “Semies Trust®) is & series trest of the Nikke AM OFshore Funds, 2r open-ended uri
trust estabdlished by o supplesrental trost deed dated Februsey 8, 2017 (the “Suppemertsl Trus! Deed ™), under the liws of
the Cingiman |dlands, Nikko AM Offthode Fursds was established by a mmaster tius! deed dated October 15, 2012 [tha
“MAsster Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman lands and is Beensed with the Capman idands Monetary Authority
P s bnt 40 section 4 1)in] of the Mutual Fusch Act {2021 Revision]. The Semes Tiust carmenced operations an March 30,
201

The Series Trust's assets are managed on a diy-to-dey badis by Nikke AN Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager® ). The
Manager deegates II'HC!-!'I'I‘.'l" I'ﬂlw dufied 10 Ak Astet Managedrent Co., LEel, (the “irsettmest MaraperT].
Thee Imeestmert Manager d wr? management dufies o Coubleline Capital (P, [the “Sub-investment

Manager L The s ristriion -ﬂ 'Il'll Series Trust it delegaied to Brown Brothers Hareman & Co. [the “Custdian™ and
“Sub-dministrator”), alimibed partnership onganized under the lows of the State of Mew York

The imvestment objective of the Series Trug i to adhieve 3 mid o long term total retunn throwgh income and capital
sppeecistion. Under noomal dreumdtances, the Senes Toost will ireest over 5006 of it ned asdet in residential and
commercial mortgage-badcked securities, actively allocated between agency and non-agincy securities.

These immesiments may include mongage-backed securities of any maturity or type, induding those guaranteed by, or
ipcured by collateral that is gurdnteed by, the Unfed States gowdmment, 16 agendes, indfrumertalifies o sponioded
ocorporations, and privately Bsued morigege-backed seourities rated a1 the tere of purchase A3 or highes by Moady's or
Ane- ar bigher by S&P or of an equivalent rating by any other natiorally recogriced statistical rating organization {"NRSRO)
that R B fecagnined By the LS, Sesuditied ond Exdhange Commanision of uirated sensities that s detefimirsd by the
Irmeestment Marager o its delegates to be of comparable quality. These irvestments abo indude, among others, U5
Geowerrment mortgage pass-ibhrough securities, collateraliced morgage obligations, mullicss pass-through securities,
private mortgage pais-through securities.

The Series Trust may 2lso imvest in short teom imvestments, such a3 notes issued by WS government agendes, and bonads,
disht securitied prod otber ficed inoome Bt urents isued by LS. geammental of private-tecior entitied, of other piset-
backed obligations, collateralized lban obligations, and obligations of the WS gowmmerd and Bs  agendies,
instrumertalities and iponiored conpora ions.

The Series Trust mray ireest in bonds of any oredit guality, induding thote thot are at the time of ireestment urrsted or
rited B8+ of lower by SEP or Bal of lower by Moody's of of an eguivalent rating by any other NRSRO, Bonds and fixed
incoeme irstruments rated bedow investmen grade, o such instraments et are vnrated and determined by 1he
Irretstimern Marager of its deliegates to be of comparable quality, are Fagh vield, bigh risk bonds, commonby known as ‘unk
bords’. The Series Trost may imest up to 2 third of its net assets n junk bonds, bank kbans and assigrements that are either
reted below investment grace of ore urrated but detenmined by the Imeestment Marager of its delegates 1o be of
womparable quality, and credit deficlt vwaps of companies in the high yidd urbasre

The Series Trust may imvest 3 portion of Bs ret aswels in inverse floater securities angd inferesi-only ard principal-onky
secLaities,

Under the termm of the Supplerantal Tiesd Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean Intermationsl Bark snd Trust
Company [Cayman ) Lirsited [Uhe “Trostee™ and the =Admanistrator” ) is named os Trustes of the Series Tust,

The Menager sppoirted Mitsubhhi UFl Morgan Stanley Seourities Co., Lid to act a5 Agent Compary (the “Ager
Company”~] and the Manager appawnted Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stankey Securities Co., 104, and SMBC Trust Bank Ui, 1o act
as Distributors {the “Citributors™) of Unitsin Japan.

SUTAMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Ther Sevies Trust s &n brvestenent company that follows the sccourding and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Standards Codification 946,

L of Estimoles

The srcompanying finandial statements have been prepared in actordarce with scoounting principle: generally acoepted in
the: United 5tates of Americas ("LLS GAAF"], The preparation of firendal statement s in accordance with U5, GAAP meouines
the Series Trust's management 1o make eitimates and assumptiors that affect the reported amowrts of assets and
Rabilties and disdosures of contingent assets and Habilites at the cate of the financial statements and the reported
amountis of revenues and expenses duning the reporting period, Actual results, ncluding the ultimate amount realized
upan the sale of fair valaed irvestments, could diffier from those estimates and such ciflerences may b significant,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARLARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [ontinund)

Boris of Accouniiag

Seourity and contractual trarsactions are recorded on a trade/contract-cdate bask. interest income is recorcied on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withhalding tax. interest expense and other expendes ane recorded on an scorual
bask, Realired gains and losses from security fransactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
sold or covered, Changes in the valuation of invstmems are remorded in the Statement of Operatiors as unrealized
appreciation or deprecaton

Wirkunrtion of imeesmenis

Bords and other debt teourities, incleding restricied securities (other than short-term obligations but ircluding leied
issues) are fair vabeed 21 their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities ane nogmally traded, on the
bask of wiuations fumished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the imaestment Manager, or if no sale
has peourred, the bid price on the valuation date as proviced by brokers who are rmarket makers in the securisies. All debs
securities with bess than 12 months s matyrity date, in prirciple shall be fair valued wing an amortized cost effected by an
effective vield accumulated femontization method 1o thew maturity cate with sdjusiments based on commparisan with
market prices a recuired.

In accondance with the authorizative guidance on falr vabue messuroments and disclosuees under LLS, GAAR, the Somes
Trust distloses the Tar value of its imvestments in o hisraschy that prionitizes 1he inputs 1o valiation technigues wsed to
measure the fair value, The hisranchy gives the highest priority toovalumions based upon unadfusied guoted prices in active
mirkets for identical assets of Babalitees {Level 1 messurement] snd the bwest priodity to veluations based upon
unabservable inputs that ane significant 1o the valustion [Level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes thres levels of
the: fai value hiorarchy as follows

= Level 1 = impats that reflect unsdjosted quided prices i acthve markets for idertical Bvestments that the Sefies
Trust bas the ability to access &t the messonemend date;

#  Level 2 = irputs other tham guoted prices that are significam and observable for the asset o liablity either
direcily of indirectly, inchuding imputs in markes that are not considensd to be actie

& Leveld 3 = ingess that are significant ard unclserable,

Impasis are used i applying the varkous valuation fechnicues and broadly refer 10 the asmmptions that market paniclipants
e to mnabe valuation diedidions, induding avsumptions about risk: mputs may include price information, specific and broad
onechit dats, lpuicity s1atistics, and other factors, A fnanaal ics trumert™s livel within the fair value Ferarcny B bésed upon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair valee messunement. However, the determination of what
ortitutes “pbaervable” tecuires sigrificarm judgment by the Imnestment Maragir. The investment Mardger consicers
obs enable data to be market data which i readily svadlable, regularly distritasted or vpdated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietasy, ond pravided by independent sources that are sctively invotved in the rebevant market, The categodcation of
financial irstourment within the hierarchy is based upon the pridng trarsparency of the instrument and does not necessarnly
oorrespond 10 the mestmert Mansger's peroeived ek of that irstroment.

IFrvestimients whode values are bassd on the quoted markeq prices in actie mirkes, and thetefone clssiSed within Lewel 1,
would include actively fraded eouities, cerain LS, gowernment ard sovercign obligations, and certain asset-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. The Imeestment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such
instrumerds, even in siuations whene the Series Trust held a large postion and a sele could reasonably impact the quoted
Pt

Irmeestments that trade in markets that are rot corsidered to be active, but ane valued bated on guoted market prices,
desler cquotations o altermitiee prcing soufced Sugparted by obsarvable inguts ane dlessified within Level 2. These include
imestmun t-grade debt securities, short-term amestments and forward foreign cumency exchange contracts and may ako
inchade certain ssed-becked seourities and collrterlized mortgage obligations. As Level 2 i i inchude posi

that are rot fraded wn acthe markeis andfor are subject to trarafer restrictions, wvahutions may be adpsied to reflect
iliguidity andfor non-transferability, which are penerelly bated on evalabde market infonmistion.

Ipvesbimends dassfied within Level 3 keve dignificent unobiervable mmputs, 84 they would trade infrequenthy. Levsl 3
instrumers would inchude certain asset-backed seourities and collateralived mortgage obligations. As observable prices are
ot svallable for those seourities, the Seres Trust would use valuation technigues to dedve the fair vabue.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARLARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [ontinund)

Virluetion of tmardmenis fooatirued)
The inputs oF methodology wsed Tor valuing securities are rot necessanly an Indication of the risk asodated with investing
i thevs e sEeurities,

The following table presents the firandal inst ruments cardied on the Statement of Assets and Liabdlities by caption and by
level within the valuation hisrarchy as of February 28, 1023 Further dawifiations of the financial Insiruments are
presented in the Portfolio of Immsiments,

Falr WVabus ot
Arvats 3t Falr Value Laveld Laval 2 Laveld Fabrusry 30, 2028
Fined Incoim e Secunties s = s 54, TIZERD LF e = Lso 54, TI2EED
Fosward Fotag Curancy
Enchirge Contracy = Pl - i1
E L0 = LISCr 54 TEOL E‘? LD - LISD 54, 750, 375
Falr Value ot
Uishiigier 38 Fair Value Lavel 1 Lavul 3 Laweld Fabruary 78, 2020
Forward Foragn Curency
Exthinps Coenricty =D - LED 5.7_9.535 L] - LI5S0 5¥H, 535
Total [T = LD 515 L35 LD = [T 578,535

During the year ended February 28, 2033, there were no transfers in or out of level 3 The Seres Trust's policy s to
diebermine keveling and avsess all tramsfers a% at @ pear end date,

Foreign Currency Trarslation
Assets and Babilities held in currengies other than United States Dellar {(“US00 of 1ha “Functional Curmency” ] are transtated
to the Functional Currency 2t the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date Income and expenses are
transkated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the income or expense is inourned, Realized and
urrealized gains and lodses anising on foredgn currency tramsactions ane induded in the $atement of Operations in the
peviad in which they oocur,

Tha Serles Trust does rot solate that ponion of the results of aperations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
on Ewestments from the fluctuations arising from chamges in market prices of securities helol Such fluciustions ame
included with the met reslized and nrealiced gain of koss from imestmants,

Inpome Teses

Ungder the currant laws of the Cayman islands, there ane ro incomes, withholging, copitsl gains or other taxes payable by
the Series Trust in oertain juniscictions other than the Cayman Blands, foreign tasoes may be withheld at sounce on
dividends and Imtenest received by the Series Trust, Capital galrs derived by the Series Trust in such jurlsdictions generally
will b exempt from foreign income or withholding taxes ot source. The Sedines Trust inbends to conduct its affaire such that
it wil not be subject to Income tax in any ursdiction, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
finarcial statements. Unitholders may be tioed on their proporionate share of the Senies Trust's fax basis income based
on their indkdchial circummstanoes,

Thie Series Trust follows the authoritative gudance on sccounting for ard disdosire of urcerfainty in tax positions
{Fimancial Arcounding Standards Boand {“FASE™) - Accounting Standards Cocification 740], which requires the Manager to
determine whether a 1ax position of the Seres Trust is more Bely than not 1o be sustained upon examination by 1he
applicable tadng autherity, induding resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the techrical
merits of the position, For tax positions meeting the more likely than not thresheld, the tax benef recogniced in the
finarcial statements Is neduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifiy percem Bkelihood of being realized upon
ultimate sestlement with the relevant taxing auihority, The Manager has deienmined that there is miniemal or no efed on
the financlal statements beirg under this authoeitative guidence,

Forwind Foreign Curemiy Excfange Conlrocts

The Series Trutt may erter into forward foreign cumency swchange contracts 1o hedge agairt foreign ourrency eachange
rate risks on all or a portion of non-USS dercminated imaestments or Tor efficient porifolio management purposes, When
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

SURARAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES [ontinupd)

Farwd Fantign Cunmemcy Exchangt Contomets (oombiou ed)

ertering inte a forward forelgn currency excharge contract, the Series Trust agrees to receive or deliver a fiked quantity of
foreign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts are vabued daily, and the Series Trust's
net eoudty theron, representing urreslized appreciatinnfidepraciation] on the contracts as measured by the differerce
between the foraand forsign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the comracs and the forward rates at the
reparting cate, I indhuded in the Statemen: of Assets and Liabilities, Realized and wnrealeed galns and losses ang inchucied
in the Statemert of Operations.

These instruments it market risk, oredit risk, or both kirgds of risks, in excess of the amowunt recogniced in the
Statermert of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties 10 mest the tenms ol ther
comracts and from movemert in ourrency and seoumies values and imerest rabes. in addition to the Sas kel hedging,
thi Serins Trust had net realized gain of USD 401 on B fonward foreign currency exchange contracts duging the year with an
average rotional of LSO 58457 and an average tesm to maturity of 9 days. The Series Tnat had net realized loss of USD
790,752 on 35 forward foreign oarency exchange contracts held at the /7Y Monthly Distribudion Class Hedged level duning
the year with an average notional of USS 2,515,750 and an average tem to maturity of 30 days. The Serfes Trust alvo hag
realized boss of USD 4,487,780 on 348 forward foreign currency exchange comracts held at the [PY Sers-Annual Distebution
Class Hediged lewel dusing the year with an average notional of USD 18,265,614 and an avwerage term to maturity of 39 days.

Witileall or substantally all of the assets of the Series Trust may be held in LS, Dollars, it & intenced for the Series Trust to
e imo hedgirg arrangements lor the baneln of JPY Monthly Distrbution Class Units and JBY Sers-Annial Distnbution
Class Uridfs, which are denominaied in Yern, Those ammargements will be to hedge against acverse movements of the
currensy of denomination of the et ments in the Senes Trus relative ta Yen, Any profits, gains, loses, costs, ncome
and pxpenditure associated with such hedging arrangements will be borne by each class,

For the year ended February 28, 2023, the noticnal ssposure on the JFY Monihly Distributon Qass Urdts and JPY Semi-
Anrual Dastribution Class Lirits forward cutrancy exchange contracls approdmated the average pet 3ssels for eady des
being net long JPY and short USD. Open contracts a1 yesr end ane disclsed in the Fortfolio of imestments

i mad Forergm Curreacy
Cashand foreign currency comprises all ourrency held with the Custodian, and ovemight and other short term placemonts
with ather financial in sinutans,

The met awsets of the Sefies Trust are dividied mnto JPY Menthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Sesni-Annual Distribution Class
Urits, U502 Mombily Distribation Class Units and USD Semi-Anmual Distribution Class Urits, The Units ane denominated in
Urited States Dollar and Japaness Yer. JFY Monthly Distribution Clays Units, JPY Semisanmuad Bistribartion Class Units, WSS
Monthly Cistribution Class Units and W50 Semi-Annual Distribution Cas Urits are saillable 1o an digible ivestor who is
any perion, corporation or entity which is not {§) a citizen or resident of the U, & parinership organined or esting in the
W5, of any corpofation, trust of other emity ofganized under tha laws of or saksting in the US; (8] person o entity eesicent
or comided in the Cayman islands (exduding any ohject of a chartable trust or powss or an exempted or non-resident
Cayman klands companry]: {ill) unable 1o subscribe for or hold Uniss withouwt violating applicable laws, or (Fd] a custoddan,
nomines, or trustes for any person, conporation or entity described in i to {ii} abowe.,

The Mansger may determine fo sswe one or mone dasses of Units of ihe Series Trust withow! prior notice o or writhen
corsent of the Linithalders,

Al of thie pet assets attributable 1o JPY Maorihly Distribution Class Units, JPY Semi-Anrual Distributeon Class Urits Class,

US0 Monthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Cistribotion Class Units, are beld by fwo nomines account
Urathedders,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023
LIMITS [cantirused]
1PY Marthly 17 SemiBnrusl USD Manthly USD SamiAnnual
Dirtribagion Clacr D trilution Claee Dirtribagion Clarr Ditribation Clser  Totsl Garles Trut

Balance ot Februsry W, 2022 [ W F ] [Tl N TR LD X34 085 D 114F8 8 uSD 45 2HTA5
Sub-sergamns dunrg the yaar 052 77,651,594 ELOES 810,524 T3,517.255
Rchgrm ptiong. donng Lha pear [#E0,656) | 376 053] (BaT.E5T] (L075,986) (630,387}
Castributions [50.541) (11,555 (5530 {H2T.658) (432 596)
et i in et ety

resulti ng from ogerations {1817 840) e et 3] (20E5N {1, 206,500) (10 Bl G 1Y
Bet Asmets st Fekrunry 18, 7023 LSD 308766l LED 41983957  LBD 1 1EdEce S0 BTMEEIT  LED SLATL1LE
Bumber of Linfs & imye of

Fabrumry 28, 2022 50,581 240,306 142,038 1L131,050 L7G2 188
Uein s ipsioied dung the yoad 151 B|/ER3I L X5 ES,5E3 AT 450
Ukruts redieem ed during the yew L5008 {5 513} (100.173) (225161 [355.8A5)
ko bl ol Wi o e

Fabruary 28, 2023 53, 563 137435 HLEREDS 5,557 LB TI0
et Avnit Value par Linit al

Februmry 28, 3023 ush LLE T fhan wsh & ush aa?
Subscriphions for Units

IPY Monthly Distribution Class Urits and 57Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first isswed o1 an iritial issue price
of JFY 10000 per Unit, The minsmum iritial subscription for J7Y Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-anral
Bistribution Clas Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or mace, and in multipled of 1 Units thereafer.

50 Mot by Cistribution Cless Urits and WSO Semi-Annusl Cistribution Class Units wene firs issued at an initial issue pricn
of USD 10,00 per Urdt, The minkmum initlal subscription for USD Momhly Distribution Class Units and S0 Semi-Anmal
Gistribution Class Units per subscriber is 10 Urits or mone, and in mubiples of § Unit thereafter.

The Marsger may waive of change the minimum @nitial and additional subscription amourts set forth abowe in its ol
discretion from fime 1o time.

Lénit Redemplone
Thee Series Trust recogrizes redermptions in accordance with the suthorizative guicence on civtingushing Eabifities from
equity. Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japaese Yen of Units, ane recognized a3 Babilities when
each of the Japarese Yen and United States Dollar Link amounts requested in the redemption nofice becomses fioed, which
pererally may ocwr sther at the time of the redeipt of the notice, or on the kst day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, recdemptions pald afier the end of the year, but baed uvpon year end net asets ang
reflected as redamplions payable af Febrvary 28, 223 There were USD 8855 for Urited States Dollar Units of
recemptions payable a5 at february 38, X023 included as Fayable for Units redeemed in the S2atement of Assets and
Liabilities.

Repurthase af Units

Urdts mary b epunchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Bay {each busiress day, commencing on March
a0, 1017, or such other day or days & the Marager may from time (o0 time determine in respect of the Series Trust alo 2
(“vabuation Dy ).

Urithodders wishing to have Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors 52 a5 1o be
received by the Distributors no later than 300 pom. {Tolyo time) on the releant Repurdhase Doy, The Biestributors will
sendd the compdeted Repurnchase Notices 10 the Sub-Adeinistratos by no later than E:00 pur, { Tokyo time) on the nelevan
Repurchase Gay or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particuler case determine.

If the: rellevant Bopurdhase hotice is not recedved by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Arpunchase Motice will
be bld over Lntil the pest iollowing Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notke b received ard Urits will then be
recermed at the relevant repeenchase price appliceble on that Repurchase Day,

A& Repunchase Notice, once given, b innevacabie,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For tha Year Ended February 28, 2023

LRITS [caetinuen ]

Compaulsary Redempdion

In the geent that the Trustes of ths Manager shall detenmine that any Units of any dass of 3 Serles. Trost ane being held by
or foe the berefit of a person wiho is not an Eligibde irvestor Tor such Sevies Trust o thit such holding would cavse the
Trust or the Series Trust 1o be required to register, be subject 1o tax or violate the laws of any jursdiction, or B the Trestee
or the Manager has reason to doubt the kegitimacy of the source of monies wed 1o fund the wibsoiption or puchme of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unisholders) that the
Truston or the Manager considers appropriate at its absohuite discretion having regerd fo the interests of the Linitholders of
the relevam Class or the Urithoddees of thie Serkes Trust a5 a whole, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustee,
mury direct the holder thereof to sell sudh Urits within 10 days and provide 10 the Trister and the Manager evidence of
such sale, failing which the Manager may redeem such Urits,

Tewminotion of ife Seres Trust

Upon tenmination, the Marager will reallze all the axsets of the Series Trust, and after paying out or retaining adecuate
provision for ol labdties properly pavable and retaining provision for the costs of the terminatean, the Trustee dhall
distribute the procescs of that realization to the Unitholders proporiionately to ther respective interests in the Series
Trust a5 of the date of tenrenation of the Series Trus,

Delribolions b Ui okdens

Thee Manager may, from tirn to {ame, in Rs solp disonetion, declane distribaniions from September 2017, Distribution will be
dedared on each Buseness Day irediately pior 10 the Bx-Distibution Date for JPY and LSD Distribution Class Units or
such other date of dates a5 the Manager may from time to me determane i respect of the Senes Trost (“Cistribution
Recond Date”™) and caloulated on the fifieenth {15th) day of sadh month for Monthly Distribution Class Units and the
fiftmenth [15th) day of March and September of each year for Semi-Annual Cistribution Qass Units (i such day bonot a
Business Day, than on the following Susiness Cayl, or such other date or dates in each month a5 the Manager may from
tirese to time determine in respect of the Senies Trust ("Ex-Distribution Date™], Distabution Feread is 8 period commencing
from the calencar day following the preceding Distribution Record Cote and encing on and inrcduding the Distribution
Recond Date. The distributions will be paid on the rdevard Distribution Payment Date, provided that sudh amourd (i€ any)
declared with respect to the relevant Gass of Units in respect of the applicable Sistribution Fesiod shall only be pai out of
the Series Trust's net income, realived and wrrealiced capital gairs and any cistributable funds of the Sefies Trust
attributable fo such Class of Units &5 determined by the Manages.

Tha declaration of distributions 1o Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Assat Value per Unit withoart any cormesponding
charge in the number of Class Level Uris ped Unitholder, Thas results in a Unitholder's overall irvestment in the Seres
Trust being recuced. In addition, ary distributions during a period which are In excess of the Series Trust's net inorease: in
et assets pesulting froen oparations results in 2 portion of the disth bution berg return of capital,

The amount of distributions, if any, will be detenmined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation or
guarant e is race that 8 distribution will be mace in fespect of each of any Distribution Perod,

Capitalisntion
The Net Asset Value per Lnit s caloulated for each Dealing Cay (each Valuastion Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time o time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by divideng the difference i value between the
Series Trust's assets and Habilities |inchuding acorued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number of Units
outatandirg

The Trust Desed stipulates That the pumber of Units to be issued in the Series Trust shall be urlimited as the Marager shall
determing and shall be withou? par value.

DERMATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification {ASC) 81%5-10-50 requines disclosures about derfvative Insiruments and hecdging activities.
it reguires that the Series Trust gisdose: a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b} how derfivatie
instruments and rdated hedged Hems ane acooyrted for and o how dervative instnaments and refated hedged items
aFfEct a0 ertity's Srancisl padition, Seancisl perfommance and cash lows.

Thar Series Trust Transacts foreand demvative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primaey

risk exposune being fornign exchange risk. The forward forekgn currency exchange condracts held by the Series Trust do no
qualify as hedges for accounting purposes under the requiresments of ASC 815,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

DERTATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRURENTS {continued)

Thar fair vabue of these derreative mstruments is inchuded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair
valie reflected as realined gains/(losses] o net change in unrealimed appseciation/[cepredation) on derkatives within the
Statermert of Operations (Note 2],

Thi Sevies Trust may ented iflo &n intemnational Swaps and Defivitiee Associstion, ine Masier Agresmert {TIS0A Master
Agreement”] with its counterparties in order fo mitigate counferparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement is Typacally
negotisted by the Sevies Trust snd its courterparties, containing the bidateral terems and conditions for all subsequent
devivative trarsactions. The S04 Master Agresment allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due from
Lounterperty into & g net payirent if B onedit sent o defiult should octur,

Thee Series Trust bas dected 1o not $ffset e value receivables and payables for cerivative contracy on the feoe of the
Staterment of Asseds and Liabilities.

At February 28, 2023 the Series Trust had entered into the following derivative assets by counterparty net of amounts
available for of et under b Masher Ketting Agreemant (TMNAT) and net of any llateral received by the Serie Trost:

Dierbrtie Asiets Dervanh Hi h Cmik Mt Aot o
hm Eﬁ_ﬁinlm Oowndlwhie for Dffset Colfateral Reoshad Colfsberal Recehad Derivabies S pets”
Brerw s Brthers Harriman & Co wo Fosdire] [FiLE s -G -ED FiE]
anen 37,514 {77.514) - - -
Total U wmowvo @ e S0 BT F]

At February 28, 2023 the Series Trust had ertered into the Tollowing desivative Rablities by courtenpary net of senaunts
available for offset under a MNA ard net of any collateral pledged by tha Seies Trust

D arfvwiive Mt Smemrt of
Lizhiligic: D erhathee Morecarh Cath Derbeathve
Salbjucs to s MG avallabla for Offret Collsters! Madged Collatarsl ladged  Uiahilkiss!
Brown Brothars bamman & Co.  LBD) 2L8D [FES] =KD =1ED B
anee 578,533 (37,584) - - 554049
Total [T 578,535 WD {27 51E)WED =50 = UsSD 551,019

b Pt drreoun L il e i sstuit, Pocw b Byl from Se coustatparty B el of defal

At February 28, 2023 the Series Tiust had entened imo the follawing dervatives

g gk DErivathag L Da it b
Dowrira s Statament Statemand
Mot Bz osrted for b of Assets wnd of fsaats wnd
Hmhh‘mtﬂl Uabilkisi Losation Fulr Valiss Lishilitien Locstion Fair Vahia
Farward Foreign aurrenty  Uniedlioed spprecimion Urenalized dapr soaion
wschanpe conbracts onforewrd forsgn onforward foresgn
| Crraney Rtk ] Lig Tty it hargE =D INTLY  ewrviney aachangs LE] ] {5TH 535)
i Pty [eads 1

This effedt of diefrvirlineg itdtiuments on the Slatement of Operatesns B the year enced Febifuary 28, 2023

Ehngm in Uervaalinad
Loewtiam of Feslived AppeEcivion oF
Derbvative: Mot Sccourted G or {Ladi) Gain or {Leds) {Depredation) an
for ar Hadging Instrumants on Darivathar on Berhathe Ourkeativar
s radalad 1o ikt anlorwind Lol g
Foreard Bareign aamency arrency echanges cordract g
eachangs contracti chirrpe i unredlited depraoation enlerward
{Currency Pk Sorign corvenay awchan ge contracs LD (52T 141) WBD {E5E 057)

TAANAGERMENT FLES

The Manager receives, oul of the assets of the Series Trust, a management fee of 3 total up to 0.6B% per annum (D03
Pt Bnnur in respect of fee for the Manager, 0L25% pier snnum of the Net Asset Value up b USD 400 million snd 0.22%
per areum of the Net Asset Value over USD 400 milliom in respect of fee for the iInvestrent Manager, and 0405 per
srnurn of the Met Asset Value up 1o LSD 200 millicn snd 0.55% per snrom of the Net Asset Value geer USD 30 million in
respect of few for the Sub-imvestment Manager) of the Net Asset Value acoued on, and caloulated a5 a%, sach Valustion
Cay and payable marthly in anresrs. in sddition, the Manager also reimburses, ot of the assets of the Seres Trusd, for any

103/220



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

FAAREAGERENT FEES [continuid)

expenses incuned by B in the proper performance of i3 powers and duties a5 paritted uncer the Master Trust Deed,
During the yrar ended February 28, 3033, the Manager camed fees of USD 381,436 of which USD 27,935 s still
outstanding as of February 28, 2023,

The Manager pays the fees of the Inssstonert Manager cart of its fers. The irastment Manager is responsible for paying
the fees of the Sub-imeestment Manager and any of the imvestment Manages's delegates or other parises appointed by the
Imestment Manager 1o perform its functions in respect of the Serics Trost.

CUSTODUAN AND SLIB-ADRIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custodian and Subwdministraton receives a cusiody fer caloulated ang paid monthly based on total assets and
transaction wohumne,

The Custodion and Sub-Adminisirator moeives, out of the assets of the Sedes Toust, an administration fee [nduding
transfer agent fen] caloulated based on the Mot Asset Value a5 at each Valuation Day at the following annual rate:
-DOFPHup to (A inclucing) S0 250 maliorn;

« L0EY up to fard inchading] LS0S00 milion;

- LOS¥ oty LISDIS00 il

Such admirisiration fee i payable menthly in arrears, and subject 10 the mirsmum senuel fiee of USD 60,000, The
Custodian and Sub-Administeator also receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, fers for ourmoncy adnvinistration ang
execution services at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevar Unit Class, subject to the
manimum anpual fee of USD 50,0000 in addition, the Custodian and Sub-Admanistrator recenms oustomary salekeeping fees
and trarsaction charges. All out-of podiet expenses of the Custodian ard Sub-Administrator are borne by the Series Trust,
During the year enced February 28, 2023, the Custodian and Sub-Admiristrator sarned fees of USD 97,083, of which USD
33,549 s #ill putstancing as of February 28, 2023,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee recefves, out of the assets of the Sedes Trust, a combined fee at the rate of QLO15K per annum of the Net
HAsset Value accrued on, and caloulated as at each Valuation Dey and payeble quariedy in arrears, subject 1o @ rrinim um
annual e of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 28, 2023, the Trustee eamed fees of USD 15,001, of which USD
6,644 s still sutstanding as of February 28, 2123,

AGENT CORMPANYTS NEES

Thi Agent Company receives, out of the sssets of the Series Trust, o fee ol the rate of 002% per annue of the Net Asset
Value acoued o, and caloulated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quartedy in areears, During the year ended
Febyuary 28, 2023, the Agent Company eamed Tees of USD 8,278, of which USD 3,719 is fill sutstanding 84 of February 28,
HE3

HSTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributors recerse, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, a fee at the rate of 0.60% per anrum of the Net Asset Value
aconued on, and calodated as at each Valuation By and payable quarierly Bn arrears, During the year ended Fobnuary 28,
2023, the Distributorns eannesd fees of USD 248,375, of which LS0 104,629 is still eutstanding o5 of Februsry 28, 2023,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establithment of the Series Trest and the offiering of the Units, 1ogether
with the establishment of the Trust, induding the cosis and esperses of preparing and printing any prospecius or
eaplanatory brochunes mequired, wore estimated ot lsunch o amount fo approximately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expenses will be amodlised within the first fie (5] firencial years of the Series Trust unless the Truster decides that some
other method shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per anrmm for FATCA J CRS compliance senices.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For tha Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RISE FMANNGEMENT

Thie Serss Trust's aeinities expase it 1o 8 vanety of financial risks: market risk (inchuding price risk, anterest rate risk, and
currenoy risk), credit risk and lousdite risk,

Market Rk
A imsestiments present a risk of lots of capital. The Imeshment Manager moderates this risk through a coreful selection of
securities and other fi rancial irstrumants,

The Series. Trust's inwestmer! marsgement prooess is desoribed n Note 1. The gremary ceterminant of the Seses Tnst's
ability 1o meet Bx objective of mid to long tenm capital appreciation while saming income is deperdert on the
performarce of the investrent in the residential and cormsmercial mongage-badked securities,

Tha vahse of the Series Trost's inwvestments is affected by 2 pumber of factors, including but not lienited to, changes in the
wider pcongamy, finandal and currency markets, foreign curency exchange rates, Imerest rate movements angd oredi
ratings of debt issuers, The Sedes Trust may ener imo foreard Toresgn currency exchange contract which to varying
degress reprosent a market risk in gacess of the amount reflected on the Serles Trust's Statement of Assets and Liabilities,
The rotasnal amount of the contract represents the extent of the Senies Trust's partcipateon o these firandal instruments.
Market fisks amsoclated with such contracts arise cue 10 the possibles movemerts in foroign currency pachange rates
urderbying these instruaents.

Orther mackes and credit fisks inchude the possibility that there may be an illicuid rmerket for the contrects, that the dhange
in the value of the corract may rot directly corndlate with changes in the value of the underlying curnendes of that the
counterparty 1o a forwand contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Series Trust's
exposune to loss dus to courerpanty non-parformance on open futunes, forwards, saap and options conrtracts is imited 1o
the unrealized appreciation irhessnt in such firandal instruments which are recognized in the S2atement of Aszets and
Liabilities.

A fl-bockid focurilidd investmenl itk

Asnet-backed securities imvwestment have the risk thet bosrowers may defaul on the obligations that undedie the et
backed security 2nd that, during periods of falling imterest rates, anet-backed securities may be called o prepaid, which
mary resalt in the Series Trust haing to reimvest proceeds in other imeestments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
the: impairment of the wilue of the collateral underlying a seourity in which the Series Trost irvests [due, for example, to
non-paymsen t of loans) will result in 2 recuction in the value of the security,

Concentralion sk

The Series Teust may imest substantially in bonds Bsued by U5 agencies in accordarce with ity principal imvestment
strategies, Because such spcurities are Bsued by a Hmited number of goverrarent agencies, any actual or poterial
disruption to those agencies could present a rsk to the Sedes Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovemment sponsored issuers of morgage-back securitins simslar to those guarariesd by Gannbe Mae, suffered sudh a
dizruption in the mortgage crisis of 2307 - X308 and were placed under feceral conservatorihip af that time. Ginnie Mae
seciaities, unlike those of Farnie Mae and Frecdie Mac, are backed by the full faith and crecit of the L5, governmant and
ane subject 1o the risks of LS government securities. Similar to other i ssuers, charges 1o the finandal condition or onedis
rating of the U5 governmen may cause the value of the Series Test's espeosune 10 U5, agencess ssourities to dedine,

Marigage-backed secwnitics nEk

Morigage-backed securities represent imterests in Cpools” of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayirent ard extension rek, Morgige-backed seourities react differemtly to changes o interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may refles acverse econoimic and market concitions, Small movements in
intedest rates [both ircremses and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduse the velue of certam mangage -badued
secunities, Dofault or bankruptoy of @ countesparty to a fo-be-announced transaction would eapose the Series Trust o
passible loss.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RISK MANAGERENT [oontinueed)

Martgage relrted amd Other Assel-Bock ed Securilnes risk

Tha Series Trust may irvest in mongage-related and other aset-backed sequrities that direclly or indirectly represert a
participation in, of s secured by and payable from, loars on real property, Morigage-related seounities ane created from
pocks of residerdial or commercial mongage loars, including mortgage loans made by savirgs and loan insiftutions,
maorigage bankers, commarcial banks and others. These securities provide a manthly payment which consists of bath
interest and prncipal, nterest may be deternnined by fised or adjustable rates. The rote of prepayments on underying
marigages will affect the price and wolatility of a mortgage refated soourity, and may bawe the offect of shoriening or
exending the effective duration of the secutity relathee 10 what was anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely
payment of prindpal and inerest of corain mortgagerelated seourities is guarant eed with the full faith-and credit of ihe
U5 Government, Pools oeated and gusarteed by nongovernmental issuers, ncluding govermiment-sponsoned
corporations, may be supponted by vanous forms of insurance or guarantees, but thene can be ro asaerance that privaie
insurers of guarniors con meet their obligations urder the insurance polides o guararee arrangements, Many of the
risks of imaesting in morgagerelated seourities secured by commencial mortgage Ipans reflect the effpcts of lacal and
other ecorodric concitiors on real estate markets, the ability of terants 1o make lease payrnents, and the ability of a
property to attract and metain tenants.

Credie Risk

Cresdit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the courienparties or istuers of debt seourities
faited to perform pursuant 1o the tenms of their cbllgations 1o the Series Trust, For eadhamge-traded contracts, the
exchange acts a8 the conterparty o spedfic transactions and, therefore, bears the ritk of defivery to and from
counterparties of spedfic positions, The Serles Trust's management does rot consicer that crecit dsk related to open
derieative contracts will have material acheerse efect on the Sinancial cordiSon of the Series Trust,

ahthough the Manager moritors the Cusiodian and believes if to be an approprist e custodian, there & no guarantes that
this or any austocdian that the Series Trust may wvie from time o time, will not become irsohent, which could lead to losses
for the Series Tus:,

Wihile both the LS Bankruptoy Code and the Securities investor Protection Act of 1970 seek o protect customer propery
in the ewerd of & failure, inschasncy or Bauidation of an inttitution, there is no cortainty that, in the event of a falure of an
institution that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Sedes Trust would not Inour losses dueto s assets being unaailable
for a pericd of time, ulimately less than full recovery of its assets, of both, Secause all of the Series Trust's cash i in
cusindy with a single Institution, such losses could be sigrificant and could matesially impair the ability of the Seres Trus
to achieve s imvestment objective. The Series Trusd is dubject 10 crodit dsk to the extent that this institution may be
unabla to fulfil is obligations 10 repay amounts owed

Ligeicily Risk
Irvestors should be aware that the walue of Units might fall as well as rise. Imaestment in the Series Trust imobes a degree
of risk, there can be no assurance that the Serles Trust's irmvestment obgective will be achirved,

Tha Series Trust is exposed to dally repurchase of fis Unlts but management believes that the Seres Trust has sufficen
resources to mest the present ang foresecable needs of its busines operstions and, i necessary, the Bquidity to fund
repurchases ard achiewe a3 market position spgroprintely reflecting 2 smaller capital base. This position is moniaded
comimaally by management to snsure that the Senes Trust has the ability to moet its obigations.

Currency itk

Thar Series Teust holdds monetary and Ron-montary 355els 2nd ircurs monetary ard non-monetary lablities denominated
in currencies other tham WSD, the Functional Currency. | §s therefore exposed (o oarency sk, a3 the vabue of the assets
and linbdthes cenominated in other currencies {"non-USE”) will fluctuate due 1o changes in exchange rates. The Sanes
Trust min enter into cumency hedging transactions from time (o tinne &n onder fo limit s eeposure to cumency nisk.

The irvestement mansger monitors the Series Toust's cutfency exposure on & daily basis,

LIBOT Replacemeal Risk

Many finandal Irstruments use of may use @ floating rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate (CLIBORT, the offered
rate a1 which major ntemational barks can obtsin wholesale, vnseoured funding. UBOR may be a significant facior in
determining the Series Trost's payment obiigations under 3 dervative Ivestmaent, the cost of inencing to the Serkes Trust
or an imeestmert’s value or refurn to the Series Tnest, and may be wed in other ways that affect the Seres Trst's
imestrent porformarce. The Urited Kingdom's Financlal Conduct Autharity armounced a phase out of LIBOR. Alhough

106/220



11.

12.

13,

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2023

TINANCLAL RISE MANAGEMENT froninueed)

LIBENT Replacereal Risk foontinued)
many LBOA rates were phased out by the erd of 2021, 2 selection of widely used USO LIBOR rates will contirue o be
published theough bure 2023 in ander to assist with 1 e transition.

The Series Trust may be nxposed to finendal irstruments tied o LS0OR to determine payment obligations, finandng terms,
hedging strategies or irvestment value, The tramition process away from UBOR might lead to increased volatility and
illiquidity in markets for, and recuce the effectiveness of new hodges placed agains, instruments whose terms cunrerly
include LIEOA, The ultimate efect of the LBOR iransition process s not expected (o be matedal 1o the Series Teust,

Qrher fisk

On February 24, 3002, Russa laurched a military invation imto Ulraine. The conflict, which is ongoing as of the date that
the financial statemens wene available to be ssued, carries sgrificart risks for 2 world economy that has yel to fully
recower from the impacts of the global COVIB-19 pandemic. Related Empacts 1o gro-political instabiizy, financial markes
wolatility, and the imposition of sanctiors, may in o impact the entity,

COMPITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Iy the normal course of Busiess, the Trustee oo behall of the Sefies Trost ray enter ir o corracts that comMain & vasety
of reprosontations and wanrarties and which provide general indemnifications, The general indemnifications apply not onky
ter the extent such represerations snd wanfanties are untree bid alse may coneer thind parties such os the Serses Trust's
Administrator, Auditcr of invastirent Manager for daims related to the sendoes performed for the Sefies Trust. The
Trustos's masimaum exposuns under any such amangements is unknown, a3 exposure only arises to the extent fubure daims
that hawe not yet ocourred ane made against the Trustee, Howerver, based on experience, the Trestee expects the risk of
loss to be remote.

SUBSECUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review vpio June 16, 2123, which is the date the firancia] statements were
irvailoble 1o be Bsued

Effective March 1, 3023 through Jume 16, 2003, there were subscriptiors of USDH 150,868 in respect of @Y Monthly
Gistribution Class and there were subscoriptions of USD 962,506 b revpect of JFY Samil-Arnual Bistribution Class, there were
subseriptions of LSS 1LA5T i respect of USD Monthly Gistributisn (lass, there were subscriptions of USD 8,496 in respect
of LAD Seml-Annual Dktribution Class,

Effective March 1, 2023 through June 16 3033, there were redemptions of USD 533,668 n respect of Y Monthly
Distribution Class and there wis e no redemplionsin respect of 9% Semi-Anrual Distributaan Class, there were fedemption s
of LSD 245283 in respect of LSO Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of U5S0 578,068 in respect of USD
Semi-tnrual Distribetion Class,

There were distributions of USD 124346 in respect of JPY Momhly Cistribution Class, There were distributions of USD
216,834 i respest of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, There were distributions of USD 7,223 in respect of USS Monthly
Cistribution Class. There werne distributions of LD 56,960 in respect of USO Semi-Arnual Distribution Class,

There are ne other Sgrificant pvents Soreport a5 they redate 1o the Serkes Tiust,
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2022 28
2022 28
47,869,583 45,594,441 6,610,738
804,052 116,579
1,551 225
168,907 24,490
638 93
46,569,589 6,752,125
41,180 5,971
31,497 4,567
45,705 6,627
22,426 3,252
13,461 1,952
9,143 1,326
6,379 925
1,524 221
117 17
95,397 13,832
15,706 2,277
282,535 40,965
46,287,054 6,711,160
49,005,301 7,105,279
(2,718,247) (394,119)
46,287,054 6,711,160
533,542,314
58,561 9,111
3,212,368,614
340,386 9,437
2,334,065
242,038 9.64 1,398
11,429,343
1,121,150 10.19 1,477
144.99
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2022 28

2,145,548 311,083
2,145,548 311,083
363,689 52,731
320,902 46,528
97,084 14,076
32,471 4,708
15,001 2,175
10,697 1,551
10,001 1,450
70,368 10,203
920,213 133,422
1,225,335 177,661
(653,704) (94,781)
(3,198,445) (463,743)
(3,852,149) (558,523)
(1,445,174) (209,536)
287,798 41,728
(1,157,376) (167,808)
(5,009,525) (726,331)
(3,784,190) (548, 670)

144.99
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2022 28

1,225,335 177,661
(3,852,149) (558,523)
(1,157,376) (167,808)
(3,784,190) (548,670)
(57,455) (8,330)
(256,371) (37,171)
(82,783) (12,003)
(197,469) (28,631)
(594,078) (86,135)
17,034 1,476,745 214,113
2,526 227,591 32,998
30,822 306,349 44,418
65,867 689,532 99,975
7,844 (671,265) (97,327)
34,245 (3,061,033) (443,819)
177,738 (1,761,599) (255,414)
820,866 (8,596,434) (1,246,397)
(11,390,114) (1,651,453)
(15,768,382) (2.,286,258)
62,055,436 8,997,418
46,287,054 6,711,160

144.99
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GAAP

GAAP

946
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2022 28

2022 28
45,594,441 45,594,441
638 638
45,595,079 45,595,079

2022 28
95,397 95,397
95,397 95,397

2022 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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67,160

3,015,726 29

19,584,720 28

2022 28

)
()
) )y )

2021

284,402,070 34,040,415 3,912,075 19,700,876 62,055,436

1,476,745 227,591 306,349 689,532 2,700,217

(671,265) (3,061,033) (1,761,599) (8,596,434) (14,090,331)
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10 1,326
37
422,001
38
2,776,272
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(57,455)  (256,371)  (82,783)  (197,469)  (594,078)

(517,646) (3,059,405)  (39,977) (167,162) (3,784,190)

2022

28
4,632,449 27,891,197 2,334,065 11,429,343 46,287,054

2021
28

49,371 372,105 388,954 1,876,149 2,686,579

17,034 2,526 30,822 65,867 116,249

(7.848)  (34,245) (177,738)  (820,866) (1,040,693)

2022
28
58,561 340,386 242,038 1,121,150 1,762,135
2022
28
79.10 81.94 9.64 10.19
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10,000

10.00

2022 28
28 41,180

10

15
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a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2022 28 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 2
CITI PB 636 (636)
638 (636) 2
2022 28 MNA
MNA
@
CITI PB 95,397 (636) 94,761
95,397 (636) 94,761
@
2022 28
638 (95,397)
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2022 28
(3,199,599) 287,740
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2022 28
363,689 2022 28 22,426
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2022 28 97,084 2022
28 13,461
0.015
15,000 2022
28 15,001 2022 28 9,143
0.02
2022 28 10,697
2022 28 1,524
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2022
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45,705
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LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
2022 24 COVID-19
12
13
2022 26
2022 2022 26 1,718
469,844 4,325 100, 256
2022 2022 26 93,995
323,852 385,992 922,733
22,493 115,204
21,066 67,209
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2022

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Buvat!

brvmdmark s i peoundies, of velus | of USD &7, 880, 50 ) L¥}! ] A%, 50441
Cath BO&O5T
e vable for aubponption procdeds 1,551
Eréprait receivable 168507
Lirw gl zed sppreciation on foreerd foregn ourmency eschange orbracks [ o]
Total seets 46569, 559
Lishiies:

Papablgfor Unitt redpemad 41,180
Papablefor invegments parchased 81497
Accruad distribesorsfees L5705
Aer usid m n e el lnes 224G
Anapd fust odan rd pb-sdminirator's fem 13087
Aerusid § rulen Teai 143
Ancrygd rand e agent feas BATS
poruad mperd. company's fees 180
Apiruad regmration lies 117
Lhrewl ovd deperwciation on foreerd forsign currency enchange cortrady P57
dsorgd othar eapenees 15, 1ok
Tiotal kit FFRF]
et Azrets Attributable to Unithaldars wsh A6 TET 054
#enabyrlr of Net freot:

Pad m capital Ui 45,008 #01
Tonal distributable loss [.718287)
et Appetr Atirbutabds to Unithalder sl 46787 064
et Arret Valoe pariink

(0P isonthly Destribution Class Py 533,547, 318+ S8 561 Uink £ cutstmnding] IPY 9111
{# SamAnnual Distrbetion Qass 0P 3,210 3600614 + 340, 356 Units oot tancing) 1P 4437
{LED Morhly Ditrbution Chasd 2 330065 « 205 Unas ot iterdng) LD el
LD Sa - Annoal Dimnboteoen Claks £ LAT9,343 + 1,121, 150 Unin g oot s2aali g [} ] 10019

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMNT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Irmatmant Incoma:
]
Totml Irverstment rosms

Expandas;
Mlanigam e e
Dastributor’ sfees
Dok dd fuch. dlen Pt oS T
Prodwiponal lees
Trustes fees
Agent compan s (ees
Tearder agant ferl
(thar guparues
Tetal Echin i

Hiet Imemstment Incama

Realaed and Upresliaad GuiraLoesd:
Aushiznd gurs/fesat)
Inewtm et i s
Fruign cur ey IParieiont i Farwaed {ons gn cuiraney sochengs Lond it
Ner ralpsd loon
Ohargge in unreshiced apprecationfideprecistion)
MR B S S
Feduign cur reney tramssctiong s e ord o gn cumency sodhargs sontract §
Mt chiangs in unnasl e doprecition
Nt raaleed and unredaedinsses

et deorears in nat assets rasuiing from eparations

S0 1185548
L 185548

I63,EE9
A30.503
o7 0E
32ATY
15,001
10,657
jLiest)
T 35
F o FE]

——-.

(3,704
(3,198 445
3.852159)

(Lass Ly
287,738

1,157,376}
5000, 525)

Wsp (3.0 100}

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Incroze (Daoreare] in Mk S cake from:
‘Oparationa:
gt invetment moome LD 1. 235,335
et realiaed losees (%043, 180)
et chisge in unresl ced depretiation 1,157,376}
el iy | it EEeRE | reiu iR Eram Sgeraiond E?E lBﬂt
Ditributions to Unithalden:
¢ Wonk by Distrikatson Jess {57,455)
B Saen sAnnusd Degnbanion Class {356,371}
LISD hlaent by (D ety s {82, 783)
LD SarniAnnusd Distrdsotion Qe 1978680
Fotal Distrbactions 34,078}
Caphal Transsctions:
Ui i
P Meenthly Dmtrikatson Clis | 17034 Uinag) 1,476,785
W Lem el Dastribagion Class {2 526 Units) pri i
LIS ok buly Dt n bateeen Dl { 30822 Unats} 306,383
LD S| -Annusl Deinibuion Olees (65,867 Linas) 683,532
Uit s radeem ed
BPY Wignt Wy Detnlarsen Clasa (7,844 Unis) (&7 L, 265)
W S -Annyel Degtribagicn Clags {34, 245 Lindtx) [3.06L.033)
LD hankhly Distnbation Qessi 177, T8 Uinkts) (3, 64509}
LD Sami~Anrwunl Desbebootinn Oass |7HLB6E Linax) B.S&E.IHE
et decrowss | n net wsset s resulting from capital transetions —11 300 LR
Total Decreade bn et daetn (85,768 582
et Ancete
Begrningof yeu e SLS5.036
bty Rt

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

ORGAMNIZATION

Roubleline Tatal Retorn Fund (Ehe “Furd”) B 8 sened trust of the Alkko AM OFshore Fundd, n open-erded unit toust
edablished by & supplernental trust Seed dated Felbruary B, 2017 (the “Supplemerta] Trast Deed” |, under the laws of 1he
Cayrman idands. Nikko A Offshore Funds was established by a master trodt deed dated October 15, 2012 {the “Master
Teudt Deed™), wnder the [5wd of the Cayman Hlnds and id lickaied vath the Chanan Blands Manetary Aoty puriusmt
o section S{1}(a) of the Mautual Funds Act (2021 Rewision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

Ther Fund's 353e1s are managed an 2 day-to-cday basis by Nikks AM Glabal Cayman Lisnited (the “Marager”], The Manager
delegates itvedtmert mshagamert dutied to Nikho Assel Maragement Co., Ud., {the “mvestment Munsger ]l The
Irvestment Marager celegates imvestment management cuties 10 Doubletine Capital LP, [the =Sub-Irestiment MINEEF"].
The achranistration of the Furd is delegted 1o Brown Brothers Harfiman & Ca. ithe 0 dian” and = Sub-Admi 1.
a Bmited parinership onganired under the laws of the State of New York,

Brgwen Brothers Harriman & Co. {("B8H") has entered into an agressmsent with State Siree! Corporation ("5tebe Seres™)
under which State Street will aoquire BRH'S Imeestor Services butimess; whidh includes it custody, fund acounting and
admanistration, transfer agency, depositary, foreign exchange, trustes and sacurities lerding services. The transaction is
et 10 b completed i the third quarter of 2022, subject to customary chading tonditions and regulatony appeovals.

The irveitment objective of the Fund i ta adhiene & mid to koog tenm total returm through income and capital appreciation.
Urder noderal cirourmstances, the Sees Truw dhall irvest ower 50% of its net assets in residential and cormmiancial
morigage-backnd securities, acthmly allocated betwesn agency and non-agercy securities.

Thase investments may include morigage-backed securities of any maturity or type, induding those guarantesd by, of
seciged by collateral that i guararteed by, the United States Goverrenant, its agencies, instrumertadities of sparmsofed
corporations, and privately Bsund morgage-backed sequrities rated at the teme of purdhase 423 or higher by Moody's or
M- o bigher by 58P or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recogrized statistical rating organization {"NRSRO™)
that ks bean recognined by the LS, Securities and Exchange Comrenission of unrated sequities that ae determined by the
Ireestiment Marager of its defegates 1o be of comparable quality. Thess imvestments ako andude, among others, U.S
Gowernment mongage passabrough securitles, collateralized mortgagn obligations, maltichss pass-through securities,
peivate mortgige piss-through securities.

The Series Trust may aluo smvest in short term irvestments, such 05 notes isued by W5, Gowernmert agencers, snd borsds,
delet securities and other fxed income irstruments issuved by U5, Govarnmental or private-secior entitles, or other asset-
basked cbligations, collaterslired loan obligtions, ard obBgstiors of the US Govemment and its agendes,
instumeralities and sponsored corporations,

Tha Senies Trust may ireest in bords of any oredit cuality, induding those that ane at the tme of irvestment urmted or
rited BB+ of lower by SEP or Bal or lower by Moody's of of an equivelint rating by sy other NRSRD. Bonds and fixed
income irstruments rated below imeestment grade, of such nstruments tha are vnrated and determined by 1he
Irvestment darager of its delegates to be of cormparable quality, are bigh yield, bigh risk bonds, commonly known as “punk
beoris’, The Series Trust may imest up 1o 3 third of its net assets in junk borgls, bank kans and assigraven s that are either
rated below investment grage o are urrated but detenmined by the Imvestment Manager o fts delegates 10 be of
comparable gualty, and eredit default swaps of companies in the high yisld urraerse.

The Series Trust may invest a portion of i#s net assets in inerse floater securities and interest-only and prircipal-onky
Seturities.

Under the terms of the Sepplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean nternateonal Bank and Trust
Company {Cayman ) Emited (the “Trustee™ and the =Administrator” ) is named as Trusies of the fund,

The Manager sppairted Mitsubishi UFl Modgan Stanley Sedurities Co., Ltd to set a3 Agent Comparry [the “Agent
Company™] and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley Securities Co, Utd. and SMBC Trus Bank Ltdl to act
o8 Dstributors {the "Distributors™) of Unitsin Japan.
SUPARIARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

The Furd i an Irnstdimet Company thit followns the accounting and reporting guidance in FASS Acrounting Standards
Codficatson 346

L of Estimares

The srcormparying fnandial statements have been prepared in scoordance with acoounting prnciples genirally accepted in
the United Stabes of Arrerica {"U.5. GAAR™)
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SUPRARARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

U of Estrmirbes (comtinued)

The preparation of finandal statements in actordance with US. GAAP requires the Fund’s managéement to make extimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Babilities angd disdosures of contingent assets and
liabiities at the date of the firancial staterments and the reported amouwnts of rewerues and expenses duiing the reparting
perind, Actial results, inchicing the ultemate amount resired upon the sle of far valued investanents, could differ from
tho s estimates and wich differences may be significant.

Bz af Accounting

Seourity and contraciual ransactions are meconded on a trage/contract-date basks, interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any appliceble withholding tax. Interest expense and other expenses are recorded on an accrual
bask, Reslieed gains and losses froe seouity iransactions are computed on the basis of the serage cost of the securnities
sold or covered, Chapges in the waluation of inwstments are recorded in the Statement of Operations a3 unrealized
mppreciation o deprecation,

wirhnrtion of i menis

Bords and other debt seourities, inchucing restricted securities (other than shost-term obligations but Including lkted
insues) are fair volued 81 their last sale price in the principel market in which swch securities ane nosmally traded, on the
bask of wbuaticns fumished by 2 pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Imestment Manager, or if no sake
has ocourned, the bid price on the valuation date as peovided by beokars who are rracket makers in the securitie s All debs
securities with bess than 12 months to materity date, in prirciple shall be fair walued wsing an amonized o effected by an
effective yield accumulsted amartization method 1o their maturity dete with adjustments based on comparion with
market prices a5 recuined,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disdlosures under LS. GAAR, the Fund
ditchoses the fair value of its imestments in a kisrardhy thet priceitizes the inputs to wlustion techriques used to measure
the fair value, The hierarchy gives the highest priority o valuations based uvpon unaciusted quoted prices in actiee markets
for identical ateit or labilities {Leved 1 measurement) and the Iowest priority 1o valuatiors bated upon unobierable
inpruts that ane significent 1o the valuation (Level 3 measuremont s The gudance establishes three levels of the falr vabue
hierarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 = inputs that reflest unediusted quoted prices n active markets for identical imcestmerts that the Fung
Irars e bl tie Botiss ot the Fredsunement divte;

®  Level 3 = irguts other than quoted prices that are significar and cbservable: for the asset o Habdlty edither
direcily or indirectly, indhuding inputs in markets that are not considened to be active;

L Lewed 3 = inputs that are sgnificant and uncbservable,

Impats are used in applying the varkss valuation techricues ang broadly refer 1o the assmplions they market paticipants
use to make valuation cecisons, induding assumptions about risk. Inputs may inchude: price information, specific and broad
ot dina, lguicity statistics, and othes factors, A fnancial instrumer’s level within the fair value Merarchy 5 based upon
the lovest level of ary input that s slgeificant to the fair vahee measuement. However, the detenranation of what
corstitutes "observable™ recuires sigrificant pudgment by the investment Manager. The investmerd Marager considers
obsenable data to be market data whizh b readily swailable, regularly distriwded or vpdated, reliable and veriflable, not
propfietany, and proviced by independent ssurces that are sctively involved i the rdevant market, The categoarication of 2
fimancial irstrusment within the hierarchy b based vpon the pridng trarsparency of the instumant and does ro? Pecessanly
corrEspond 10 Ehe investmem Manager's paroeived sk of that irstrument.

Ienvistirsirds whose vabues are basbd on 1he sutted market prices in Sctive irarkets, and thtefore dlassifiad within Level 3,
woudd incducle acthvelly traded ecublies, ceriain LS. gowernmont and soeereign obligetions, and certain assed-backed
secufities and colliteralived mortgoge obligateons, The Ireesament Marager would not adjust the quated price for such
Insthumens, sven in stuations where the Fund held o large position ard 3 sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Irvestmers that troce in markets that are pot corsidensd 10 be active, but are walued based on guoted markel prces,
desler quotations or altemetive pricing sources supported by observable inparts ane classified within Lewd 2. These inchude
imestmeni-grace debl securities, shon-tenm evestments and forward foresgn cumency excharge conbracts and may abo
include certain aset-backed seourities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As Level 2 invesiments inchude positions
that are rot traded an active markets andfor are subject to transler restrictions, valuaticns may be adjusted to reflect
illiguidity andfor non transferabiity, whichare generally based on @aillable market information.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continuad)

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SURMNARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd)

Valurtion of imaedmenis fooatimued)

Iresstimers cassified within Level 3 haewe significant unobservable inpauts, as they would tade infreguently, Level 3
instmers would inchude certaln asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are
not svalable for those seourities, the Fund would use valu ation techriques o deree The Fair valos,

The inputs or methodology Lsed Tor valuing securitins are not necessarlly an Indication of the risk amodated with investing
in those seourities,

The following table présents the fimandal inst ruments cardied on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
lovel within the valuation hisrarchy as of Febeuary 28, 2022, Further dassifimtions of the financial insiruments are
presented in the Portfolio of imeestments.

Brvets st Fair Valus Fair Valus st
Levell Leveld Level 8 February 3, 05
Fiuid Inéame LEn - [} 45 504,441 [E.Au} = (X<} 45,504,441
Forward Foregn Currency
Exgh Contracs = 53 = -1
Tetsl (3] - ] &5, 525,079 =0 - L] 45, 595,079
Lishiiie: a2 Fair Valie Fair Valus ot
Larved 1 Lol Level® Fobruany 3, 2
Forward Foregn Cuerency
Esoharps Corfimis (¥ ) - [ x ] 96, 397 (X7 - LD S5, 397
Total [T x LD N.ET [0 = (K] 95397

Curing the year ended Febmary 28, H2¥, the were no transfess in or out of Lewel 3. The Fund's policy is 10 determine
lewellng dnid fideis ol tranafers a3 at b yedr end date

Foreign Currendy Transfrtion

Asgaets and abilities held in ourrendes other than United States Dollar {“US0° or the *Functional Cumrency®] are translated
to the Furctional Currency #1 the rage of tilﬂul'v Fl'ﬂuilins at the financial statement date income and ENRETTAE are
translated at the rate of exchange provailing at the date on which the income or exponse is ircurnecl Realized and
urealined gaint and boties ariting on forsgn currency tramactiond ane induded in the Statement of Operations in the
i i wehich they oo,

The Furd doos not iolate that portion of the rewults of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
imestments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities beld Such fluchation ane induded
with the ret realized and vorealized gain or lows from investments,

Income Toxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman istands, there ane no incomes, withholging, capital gairs or other tazes payable by
the Fund, in certain jurisdictions ather than the Cayrman tlands, foreign tanes may be withheld 8 source on dividends and
interest received by the Furd, Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurisceetions gererally will be exerpt from freign
incerme of withholding taces at source. The Fund infends to conduct its affars sudh that it will rot be subjest tonmcome tax
i iy jurrshciEon, As @ nesull, o provdsion for incodme taxes hes besn made in the financial statements. Unitholsers may
b tamed on their propartionate share of the Fund's tax badsi incoeme based on their indhidusl crcummitences.

The Fund follows the suthrit stive guidance on acountiang for and disdosure of uncertsinty in fax poditions [Finarcial
Accouning Sandards Board [TFASE") - Acoounting Standards Codification 740, wheth reguires the Marager to detenrane
whelher & tin poiition of the Fund i more Ekely than 1ot fo be sstained upon examination by the applicable taxing
suthority, mcluding resalution of ary related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical meriss of the position,
Fowr tax positions meeting the mare [ely than not threshold, the tax bmefit recogniced in the firendal statements is
recuced by the langest Berefit that has & greater than fifty peroent Bkelihosd of bewng realived upon ullimae set therent
with the melevard taxirg authority. The Mensger has determined that there i@ minim2] of ro efect on the financial
staternerts being under this autheditative puidence,

Forward Fareign Curmemcy Excfange Controcts

The Fund may enter into forward forsign aurensy exchange contracts to bedge agairs foreign currensy eachange rate
risks on all or @ portion of non-USD denomirated imvesiments of for efficient portfolio mansgement purposes, When
ertering into & forward fonegn currency exchange tonradt, the Fund agrees to receive of deliver & fioed quantity of
forsign currency for an agreed-upan price o an agreed future date. These contracts sre valued daily, and the Furd's net
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SURMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd)

Forwind Foveign Cunemiy ExcFrange Conlrocts [eewrtionred

euity therein, repretenting unreslioed um-::'mim.n':depmcim'm] on the comracts o8 medtuned by the difference
between the foreand foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates atthe
reporting date, it induded in the Statement of Assets and Lisbilities. Realived and unrealiced gains and losses ane inchuded
inthe Statemernt of Operations

These: irstruments ireohe market risk, oredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in sxcess of the amount recognized in the
Staterment of Assets and Lisbilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties fo meet the tenms of their
comracts and from moverment in ourrency and seounities values and imerest rates. n addition to the Qass level kedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USS 1,326 on 6 forward foreign oorrendy enchange corbracts during the year with an average
nationa of USD 67,160 and an average term to matunity of 10 days, The Fund had net realized foss of LSO 222,001 on 37
forward forsign curmency exchange comracts held at the 18y Monthly Distribution Class Medged hevel during the year with
an average rotional of LISD 3,015,726 and an average tenm to maturity of M days, The Fund also had realized loss of USD
2 TTE,232 on 38 forward foreign cumency exchange contracts held at the 27 Semi-Arnual Distribution Class Hedged level
during the year with an awrage notional of USD 195847700 and an average team to maturity of 28 days.

while all or substantially all of the 3sspts of the Fund may be held in LS. Bollars, it s imended for the Furd 1o enter into
hedging arrangements for the benefis of 57 Monthly Distribution Class Units and 177 Semi-Annus] Distribution Class Lnits,
whach are denominated in Yan Those arrangements will be to hecge agairst adverse movements of the currency of
dencmination of the imestments in the Series Trust relative 10 Yen Any profits, gains, kosses, costs, income and
expengdiiure avsociated with such hedging arrangements will be borme by each dass,

Fior the yesr ended February 3, 2022, the noticnal exposure on the JFY Monthly Distribution Qass Units and JFY Sami-
Annal Sistribution Class Urits forward ourmency exchange contracts approdmated the average net assets for each dlass
besng net long JPY and shorl USD, Open contracts i year end are disclsed in the Fortfolio of tmeestments

Coath and Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign aurrency comprises all curnen oy held with Browan Srothers Hariman & Co,, and owernight and other thort
btl"rl'lﬁ-l'l:b'l‘l!l‘l‘tl with other finarcisl institutions.,

The met assets of the Fund ane divided into JPY Monthly Distribution Clas Units, 1PY Semi-nnual Distribution (lass Lnits,
U0 Monthly Cistribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Cistribution Clas Units, The Units are derominated in Urited
States Dollar and Japsnese Yen 1PY Maonthly Distibution Qass Units, 1Py Seri-Anmual Distribution Oass Units, USD
Meantbily Distribution Class Units ard USD Seri-Arnual Distribution Cass Urats are available b an digitde vestor who is
any peron, ooaporation of entity which it not i) a citizen or resident of the LS, a partrership organined or existing in the
L5, or any corporation, trust of ather emity ofgarined under the laws of or saisting in the US; (8] person o entity resident
or domicled in the Cayrman islands {exduding any objed of a charitable trust or powsr or an exempbed o non-nesicdert
Cayrran Wlands compary]: {iii) unable 10 subseribe for or kold Units without vislating applicable e, or (7d] & custodian,
nomine, of trustee for any perion, conporation of entity described in (1) to i} abowe.

The Manager may determing 1o issue one or more clisses of Units of the Fund without prior natios o or written consent of
theé Unithakdird.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

LIS |comtinued)

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, [PY Semi-anrual Distribution Class Urits Class,
USD Maonthly Destribution Class Units ardd USD Semi-Anmual Dista bution Class Units, ane held by two Unitholders,

1P Whasthly 1P Semmi-Aarus] LIS Manthiy USD Sam kAl
Eeeerbagion Clare B tribution Has Bistribustion Claae Bixerbation Clace Total Funal

Balance ot Fetrasry 1, 000 SO 4,400 S0 B 040,415 T T TET Y WD 19 TO0E0E  USD BLOSS. AN
Subscrptions duning the year 5476, T45 277,591 306,348 53,532 2,700,217
Riddmptiong theing the pom [671,265) [3.068,033] (LTH1,559) (8.596,434] (14.050,33L)
Custributiore [52,455) [156,371) (B2783) (LT, L69] [§8d,00m)
Hat dixriniem in fot aEset i

remlting from operations [517,6465) [A.059.405] (£ TR [T, 8900
et Auiiartd ot Febeuary 38, 7027 LI50  4.632 443 L0 2T 187 LD 734055 L0 11427 543 A6, 27054
Bom bt of Lin 83 v i o

Februmry 38, 2021 &0.4%1 ¥¥2 08 il G54 1007, 140 LA06. 5T
Uit e durirgg tha yesr 1708 1528 30512 E5867 L6 2w
Uiz i e charig Ehe pee (7,844 [4.248) (AT T [20.065] {040,893
Humber of Linits r isue o

Februmny 28, 2022 58,561 20, 86 242038 L12LE50 LTEL13E
et Auit Viakuw pr Linit o2

February 28, 2022 ush TR0 D BESd LD a6 UsD 1019

Subscriptions for Umits

IP¥ Maonthly Distribution Class Urits and JPY Semi-hnnual Distribution Class Units were first issved 0 an iritial iswe price
of JPY 10000 per Unit. The mirémom icfial subscription for J0Y Monthly Distribution Clast Units and [0Y Semi-Anrival
Distribution Class Urits per subscriber is § Unit or mace, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafer.

A0 Monthly Sistribution Class Units and WSS Semi-annual Distribution Class Units wene first isiued at an initial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Urit. The mirimam initisl subacription for USD Marthly Distribution Class Unrile and USD Semi-Snru sl
Bistribution Class Units per subscriber i 10 Urits or more, and in mubiples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Marager may wanse of change the minimem nitial ard additional subseription amounts set forth above i its sole
diseretion froem time to time

Linit Redemplion

Thi Fund recognines redemplions in accordarse with the suthoritative guidance on distinguishing Bebdities from ecuity.
Redernplions, whether expressed a3 United States Dollar, Lpanese Yen of Units, are recognioed a3 Bsbilities when each of
the japanese Yen arc United Siates Dollar Unit amourts reguested in the redemption notice becomes foed, which
gerirally miay becud either gt the Sime of the receapt of the fatice, of on the last day of & fiscal year, dipending on the
natire of the fetuest. As B result, redemptions paid after the end of the pear, but bined upan year end et a5ses ane
reflected @ redemptions payable @1 Februery 38, 2022, There were USD 41L180 for United States Dolar Units of
redemptiond payable 32 &t Februsty 28, 2022 inchided 83 Payable fod Urits redesmed it the S2atement of Asiets and
Liablities.

Reégurchesé af Units
Urits prary be repurchased o the option of Unitholders on each Valustion Dy, or sudh other day or days as the Manages
riry frowm tiene o time deter mine i respect of the Series Toust ("Repurchase Gay™).

Uritholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send 2 complebed Repurchase Notice to the Cistributors io 85 1o be
received by the Distributary mo later then 300 pom. [Tokpo firse) on the rebevant Reporchase Day, The DEbabuiors will
send the complieted Repurchase Notices 1o the Sub-Adminisiratod by no kter than E-00 pon. | Tokyo time) on the relevar
Repurihase Doy of by such ather tiere a3 the Sub-Administrator may in iny peniculss cate determine

15 tihe releeant Repurdhade Notioe it not recsived by the Sub-Administrator by the relevart time, the Repurchane Modics will
be besld over wntil the pext following Repurchase Day after the Repurchase MNotkce & received ard Urits will then be
redemmed ot the relieant repurchsse price applicelde on that Repurdhase Doy,

& Repunchiie Notice, orce ghaen, B iffesocable.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

LIS |comtinued)

Compalsory Redempiion

Irvthe everd that the Trustes of the Manager shall detenmine that ary Units of any dass of a Series Trust ane bang held by
of for the benefit of @ person who is not an Eligible imvestor for such Serles Trust or that such holding would cavso the
Truet or the Sevies Trust (o be requined to register, be subject b taw o vicdate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
or the Manager has reason to doubt the kegitimacy of the source of monies uied 1o fund the ubsoription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reazon {which may not be disdoted by the Tnstes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trsstes or the Manager considors appropeiate at its abschute discration hidng regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the: relevart Class or the Uritholders of the Series Trust as 2 whole, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustes,
g direct she holder thereod 1o sell such Urits within 10 days and prosdde 1o the Trustes argd the Manager evidenge of
such sale, failing which the Merager may nedesm such Linis,

Temination of the Fumnd
Upon termination, the Marager w48 realize all the assets of the Fung, and after paying out or retaining adequate prosvision
for all liabilitics properly peyable and retaining provision for the costs of the termiration, the Trustes shall distribute the
proceec of that resliration to the Unitholders proportionately 1o their respective interests in the Furd & of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Dstribations to Unitholders

The Marager may, from time bo time, in 13 sole discnetion, dedlene distributions from September 201 7. Distribution will be
diecared on sach Business Day immediately prior to the Ex-Distribition Cate for 16 and LSO Digtribution Class Units or
such other date of dates a3 the Menager may from time 1o Sme determine in espect of the Sedes Trost | "Distribution
Record Date”} and caloulated on the fifieenth (15th) day of each month for Morthly Cistribution Class Units and the
fiftmertth [15th) day of March and September of each yesr for Semi-Annual Distibution Qlass Units [ such dey i not a
Basiness Day, then on the following Susiness Cay), or such other date or dates in each month as the Manager may from
time to time determing in respect of the Series Trust ("Ex-Distribution Date”). Distribution Period is a pericd commencing
from the calencar day following the preceding Distribution Record Cote and ending on and kncluding the Distribution
Record Date. The distribuions will be paid on the rdevam Distribution Payment Cate, provided that such amourt (i any}
dedlared with respect to the refevant Gass of Units in respect of the applicable Dist ribution Pesicd shall only be peid out of
the Series Trusts net income, realived and unrealiced capital gaire and any distributable funds of the Series Trust
attributable fo such Class of Units 25 determined by the Manager.

The declaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Cliss Lewe Net Asset Value per Unit without any comesponcing
charge in the rumber of (Rass Livel Urits per Unitholder. This retults in a Unitholder's overall irsestment in the Fund
beang rechiced, in addition, any cisiributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund’s net ncrease in net assets
resalting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being refurn of capital.

The amount of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in i3 role discretion, and no representation or
puil rért et i mnade that & distribution will be made in resped of @ach o sy Bistribution Period.

Copilaiination

The Net Asset Vahue per Uri is caloulated for each Desling Day feach business day, cowrerendng an March 30, 2007, or
sch other day of days a5 the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Fund also a (Svalustion Day®), by
divicing the diff erenoe in vabue between the Fund's assets and Babilizies (induding scorued fee and expenses of the Fund)
by the nurrber of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipul that the ber of Urits 10 be iwued in the Fund shall be uvnlimied as the Manager shall
determing and shall be wishouy par value,

DERIVATIVE FINARCIAL INSTRUBENTS

Accouniang Stardard Cogiflcation {ASC] 815-10-50 requines disclosures about derivabee nsiraments and hecging acthiees,
|E resmires 1at the Fund disclose: ] bow and why an &ntity wies defiedtinn® nitnements, b] bow dervative indtruments and
related hedged items are accounted for and ¢ how derbatiee instrument s and selated hedged items affect an entity’s
firnarcial position, finarssl perfonmanoe snd cash o

Thee Fund trarmact forwand derivatie Fstruments primanly for hedging purpotes with esch instrument™s primary risk

wgposune breing foreign exchange rek. The foreard foreign ourfenoy exchange comracs held by the Fund do not gualify as
hedges for sotounting purpases under the requirements of ASCE15.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

DERMATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

That fair walue of these derkative instruments is indluded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair
vahe reflected as realined gains/(fosses] or met change in unnealined apps eciation/[depresiation) on dervatives within the
Staternent of Operations (Note 2],

The Fund may enfer info an intemational Swaps and Derbathe Assodation, Inc Master Agreoment {71504 Master
Agreement”] with s counterparties an order fo mitigre counienparty risk, The SDA Masier Agreement is typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-laseral tenrs and conditions for all subsequent deriatie
transastions. The IS04 Masier Agreement allows far the petting of all aenounts swed 1o of due from courerpany into a
singhe net payment if 2 crecit evert or defaull should ccour,

At Febeuary 28, 2022 the Furd had entered into the following dervatiee 2911 by counterparty net of smounts sailable
Tor offset inder o Master Metteng Agresament ["MRA™) and net of sny collaterall recenned by the Fund

Derbestiva fisrets  Deshvativesr Hen-cath tuh Poet fmenare of
Countorparty Sulbjuct to 3 WP fvailabls fior Offret Collateral Aecived Colfatoral Recahasl Derivative daren
Brownbrothe Fammn B Ga. L0 ILED = LD =LED =D ]
amEE - L fea8)__ - - =
Total [T 630 U5 636} LSD — U0 —uso 2

At Febeuary 28, 2022 the Fund had entered into the foliowing derhvarttee Rabilities by colnterparty net of amounts saibible
for offset under a M3 A and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund

D arwtive Tt fumpsant of
Listsfiey Drmrvats M h Cuik Derkrathe
= Pty Sadjoct to s MNA Availabls For Offiet Collatersl Madged Collataral Madied Liabiliias
anes (1] 25 MILED (EELIST = L0 =L 24,761
Total .. 29397 3D . L] —uso =g ML
L Metamaunt gdals the e aesours bliayabie from Se i tha evens of defiall

At February 28, 20F2 the Furd had entered into the following derratives:

At Darhvatiei Liability B rivisthota
Dbt Slwbem ent StelEmaEnt
Mot Azccarbad For an of Az ot and ef Aizats and
Medging bnitram ants Lakilkias Losation Fair Valug Lighliting Locstion Fair Valug
Farvird fSargign durninsy  Linnsdhibid agsfei &ion Lirsaalized dapr paatibn
anchange contracty onForward foreign onforwerd foresgn
N Currency Pisk ] L e y i Charmpe LESTE B3N  cwrreniy aaxchange usm [ |
contracts ok rict §

The effect of derivative instruments on the Staterment of Operations for the year ended February 28, 2002

Chinge in Urraabied
Lacation of Foslired Appradistion or
Digribrativenr Mot Sccounted Giadin o [Loae) Gain or {Lozr) {Depraciation) an
for 31 Hadging Instruments o on Dervatbad Darkeatives
et rented lasses onforwand Eomign
Farward foreign aurmency OEveny exchange Corran s
wachinge contbracts charpe n uneealifed appracansn onlore i d
{Curnency Ris| foeaign curvency machan go codiracs [1.1] {3.499.599) _umn 07,740

TANAGEMENT FEES

The mﬂlg!ri!-!l‘ﬂiﬂ!d b recsive cut of the assets of the Seies Trust 8 management fee of & 018l up o 068X per annum
L35 per anrum in respact of fee for the Marager, (L¥5% per annum of the Set Asset Value up to USD A00 million and
225 par oo of the et Ascet Walue dwer USD SO0 million in nespect of fee for t1e imedtment Marager, and DA03 per
annuen of the Met Asset Value up 1o LSD 200 rrillicn and 0353 per anrwum of the Ket Asset Vabue over USD 280 million in
et of fen for the Sub-irvestmrt Manager) of the Net Asset Vidue scomed an, and caloulates a3 a8, each Valwation
Cray and payable monthly in amears in addition, the Marager is alto entithed to be reimbursed out of the sstets of the
Series Tiust for Ay Expenied incurned b'f i1 in 1he proper performance o i powerd snd duties 85 permitled under the
Master Tnat Decd, Curing the year enced Fobwuary 28, 2022, the Manager camned fees of USD 363,689, of which Uss
22,406 18 44ill sutstancing &1 of Februsry 28, 2072,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FAANAGEMENT FEES [continued)

The Manager will pay the fees of the imvestmert Marager ot of Bs fees, The Imvestment Manager will be resporsibde for
paying the fees of the Sub-imaestment Manager and any of the Irvestment Manages's delegates or olher parties appoimed
lbey £ inyestmerd Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Tres,

CUSTODUAN AND SUIE-ADRIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The fund has a custody and accountlng agreemart with Brown Brothers Haniman & Co. (the “Custodian™ and “Sub-
Adminiitrator” ) for which the Cistodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total svsets and trarsaction
wolume

The Custodian and Sub-Adminisirator i entithed 10 receive out of the assets of the Serdes Trust an adminbiration fee
{inchuding transfer agerd fioe) caloulated based on the Net Asset Walue as at cadh Valuation Day at the following anrual
e

- BLOTH up to fand including] S0 250 million;

- D6 up to fand including] LSD SO0 milion;

~LLOSH ower LIS 500 million,

Such administration fee i+ payable monthly in arrears, and subgect 1o the mirimem annual fee of USD 0,000, The Sub.
Administrator i alio entitled toreoeine out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for cuntency adminisirstion and execution
services at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Valie of the relevant Unit @ass, sibject to the minimum anrual
fee of USE 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Adminiztrstor i 2lio entitled o receie customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges. All cut-of pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Seriet Trust During the year snded Febosary 28, 2022, the Custodian esrned fees of LSO 97 0848, of which USD 13,461 i
still cartstanding as of February 38, 2002,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustes b enditled 10 receive ot of the amets of the Series Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per anrum of
the ket Asted Valuve accroed on, and calculated as at each Vahuation Day and payable quarterdy in amears, wbject to @
minimum annual fer of USD 15,000, Dusing the year ended February 28, 2022, the Trustee carned fees of USD 15,000, of
whiich WA29 143 is still outstanding as of February 28, 20232,

AGENT CONSPARNYTS FEES

The Agent Company i entitbed 10 neosiee out of the assets of the Series Trust a foe 3t the rete of 0.02% per anfum of the
Net Asset Value acorued on, and cafculsted as at, sach Valuation Day and payable cuarterly in armears, During thie yrar
ended February 28, X022, the Agent camed fiees of USD 10,697, of which USD 1,534 s still outstanding a% of February 28,
202

Thi Distributon ane entitled to receiwe cut of the stsets of the Seres Trust & fee ot the rate of 0.60% per anowm of the ke
Asset Value accrued an, and caleulsted as ol each Valustion Gy and payable quarterly in arrears. During the yesr ended
February 28, K122, the Distributons earned fees of USD 300, 502, of which WS0 5,705 i still outsdanding o4 of February 28,
Fiirr s

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

Thi: costs and expanies in connection with the establishment of the Seriet Trust and the offieting of the Units, 1ogeiher
with the establisthment of the Tnst, induding the costs and esperdes of praparding and printing any prodpecius or
explanatory brochures required, were estirated g Burch to amount o spproximately USD 140,000, Sudh costs and
eapernes will be amortined within the first fiee (5] firencial years of the Series Trust unless the Trost e dedides that some
wther method shell be applied, The Administrator recsives USD 1500 per anrum Tor FATCA /| CRS complianci serdos.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT

Thi: Fund's activities expose it to 3 varnicty of fanancial risks: market risk linduding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk), credit risk and liguidity sk,

Marked Higk
Al rvestiments present a risk of loss of capizal, The Imvestment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other firendial instruments.

The Furd’s imeestment management prooess i described in dote 1. The primary determirant of the Fund's abilfity 1o mest
its objectieae of mid 1o long tenm capital appreciation while eaming ircoma Is dependent on the perormarce of the
irmmestmuentin the residential and commsrcial mortgagebacked seourities.

The walues of the Fund’s imvestments ane affected by a number of factors, indheding but not limited to, dhanges in the wider
economy, finandal ard cumercy markets, foreign currency exchange rates, Inferest rte movements and orecit ratings of
debt istuers. The Fund enters into forward contracts which o vanying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
smaunt refleched on the Fund's Statement of Adsets and Lishilities. The notions amount of the contract FEprEdents 1he
extent of the fund’s participation in these finandial imstruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the persiblie maernents in foreign aurenty Bnchin ge fatis undedlying theie st ruaments,

ey market and credit risks indude the posibility that there may be an illiquid merket for the conracts, that the dhange
in thie value of the coMract may not directly corredate with charges in the value of the undeslying currendes or that the
counterparty b o forwand contract defaulis on its cbligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
eaposune to loss due to courterpanty non-parformance on open fuiunes, forwards, veap and options cortracts i limited 1o
the urrealized appeecistion irherent in such firancial inttrumersts which are recogrized in the SSaternent of Asets and
Liaklities.

As el -Backed £ curilitd ifvestrmenl ik

Adpet-backed fecurities imestrnent have the risk thet bormowers may defacht on the obligations that underlie the st
backed seourity and that, during periods of falling imerest rat es, dnel-backed secuiities may be caled or prepaid, which
mury retult in the Serie Trust hoding to reinvest procesdd in other irvettments ot a lowser interest rate, ard the risk that
the impasrment of the value of the collateral undedyng & seourity in which the Seres Troat imaests [due, for exserple, o
nor-payrmnt of loans] will result in @ reduction in the value of the seourity.

Concentralion risk

Thee Sefiet Toust may irvest substprtisBly in bonds Biued by US sgencis in adcordance with it principa] irmeestment
strategies, Becavie tuch wecurities are #sued by a limited number of govemment agendies, any actual or poterdial
disruption to thote sgencied could present & sk to the Sedes Trost, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mas, which are other
powmmment -sponsored issuers of morgage-back securities simillar to thowe guaranterd by Ginnie Mae, suffered sudh a
digruption in the mofigage oridis of 2I07 - 7008 and were pleced under federsl conderestorship af that time Ganmnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Facnie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed bey the foll faith and oedit of the US. government and
sfe subject to the rishs of WS government securities. Similar 1o other isvers, chiarges 1o the finandal condition of onedit
rating of the UA government may cause the value of the Series Trest's exposure 1o UUS agencies seourities to dedine.

Martgage -backed securitics rick
Merigage-backed securitie represent interests in Cpools” of mortgages and are subjes! to credit, intefess rate,
prepaymient and sdention ek, Mortgage-backed wecurities react differemtly to changes ininfenest rate than other bords
and the prices of mortgage-backed secunities may neflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemerts in
intenest rates [both ircreeses and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduce the velee of cerizin mongage -backed
secufities, Default of bankruptey of & counterparty to 8 fo-be-announced transaction would expote the Seried Trust to
prssibde o,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT [rontinued)

Mortgage-reloeted and Other Assel-Bocked Securitres risk

The Fund may imeest in mongage-related and other asset-backed securities that diectly or indirecily represent a
participation in, or ane secured by and payable from, loars on real property, Mortgzge-related seouities ane oreated from
pock of residential or commaercial morgage loar, inchading mortgage losrs mrade by tavings ard loan institutions,
morigage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securitins provide a manthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal, interest may be determined by fied or adjustable retes. The rate of prepayments on underbying
morigages will affect the price and volatility of 3 morgage-related seaurity, and may hawe the offect of shoriening or
wdending the effective duration of the seourity relative 10 what was anticipated at the time of purchese. The fimely
payment of prindpal and imerest of cortain mortgage-related seourities s guarantesd with the full faith ard credit of the
US Gowemment, Pool created and guaanteed by nong ental i including  govennment < ponsoned
corporations, may be supported by vanious forms of insurance or guarantees, but there can be ro asserance that privaie
inturers o guarantors can meet their cbligations urder the insurance polides or guarariee arrangemonts. Many of the
risks of irvesting in mortgagerelated securities secured by commencial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local ang
other economic conditioms on real estate markets, the ability of terants to make lease pagments, and the ability of a
property to athract and netain tenants.

Credit Hitk

Cregit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would inour if the counterparties or issuers of debt seounities falled
tor perform pursuant 1o the terms of their obligations to the Furd. For excharge-traded montescty, the exchangs acts a3 the
counterparty to specific transaciions mnd, therefore, besrs the sk of defvery to ard from coumerparties of specific
posititns, The Funds managernent does nat consider that onedit rivk related fo open derfvatine contracts will hinee material
atverse effect on the firarcial condition of the fund

Although the Marager morfton the Custodian and believes it 10 be an sppropeiat e custodian, there is po guarantee thet
thit or ary custodian that the fund may wie from time to time, will not become nwbent, which could lesd to losses for
the Fund,

While batih the LS, Bankrugtcy Code and the Securities irmoestor Protection Azt of 1970 seek to protect austomer propeny
in the eeerd of & failure, inschency or Bquidation of &n inttitution, theve i2 no cortainty that, in the event of a fadure of 2n
institution that has custady of Furd assets, the Fund would not inour |losses due to it isets being urdnsilsbie for 8 period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
irstftution, sush lossed could be sgrificant and could matetially impair the ability of the Furd to achisve its irestment
objective. The Fund is sbject 1o credit rish 1o the extent that this imstitution may be unable to fulfill &1 obligations to repay
DTS cwed.

Liguaiafily fisk
Irmeestors should be aware that the value of Units might fall a5 well as rise. investment in the Fund involves a degree of risk,
these can be no dsburance that the Fund's irmvestenent objective will be sdhieved.

The Furd it experied to daily repurchase of s Units bul mansgerment befieves thet the Fund hes sufSider resources to
meet the presemt and foreseeabde meeds of its business operations and, if necessary, the Bouidity to fund repurchases and
pchieve & mbrke! padition appropriately reflecticg o amaller capitel base. This podition is monitdred confinuslly by
mumagament to ensure that the Fund has the ability 1o mee1 ity obligations,

Currenacy Risk

Thee Fund kalds monetary snd fon-moretary sisets and inours monetary ond non-monetsry liabfitie. denominated in
ourrEndies other tham LUSEL the Functioral Currency. it is therefore exposed 10 cummeney risk, i the vabue of the assets and
liabilities dencminated in other cummencies ("ron-LEDT) will Aucteste cue 1o dhanges Bn excharge rates. The Fund maey
erihiy fne cutfery hidging ransactions from time 1o time in orcer b limit its exposure to cunnerey fisk.

The imvestirent mansger monitors the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis.

LB Beplecement Ritk
Many finardal instruments wse of may use 8 floating rete based on Lendon Interbenk Offered Rate [CLIBOR"), the offered
rate & which major Enternational barks can obtsin wholessle, unseasred funding. UBOR may be & sigrificart factor in
determining the Fund's payment obligatiors vnder 8 derfative irmesiment, the cost of firending fo the Fund o an
imestmen t's value or return to the Fund, and may be wed in other ways that affect the Fund's inwestment performanoe.
The United Kirgoor's Finarcial Conduct Muihority anndunced & phase out of LHBOR. Although many LIBOR rates were
phasid out by the end of 20231, a selettion of widely wed LISD LIBOR rates wall continue 10 be publithed through June 2023
i e 1o assast wath the trardition.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINANCLAL RESKE MANAGEMENT [continued)

LI e fmcerment Risk foontinued]

The Fund may be exposed to finandal instrumernts tied to LIB0R fo determine payment oldigations, firending terms,
hedging arateges or Peetment value, The trensition proces away from UBOR eight lead to incressed volatility and
iligquidity in markets for, and reduce the effectiveness of new hedges placed againss, irstroments whode terms cunrerly
inchade LIBOR, The ultimate effect of the LBOR transition pracess isnat expecied to be material 1o the Fund

Other Risk

I 2020, the COVID-19 owtbreak was dedared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. The situstion is dynamic with
whrious citiey and courtiried around the world esponding in different wayd 10 address the outbreak, The cipid devslopament
and fhuidity of this situation prechudes any prediction as its wltimate smpact, which may have a contirued adverse impac
on ecanamic ard market condifions and ﬁmamnrmmk!m&mm

The Trustee ard Irveitmend Mardger sre monitinng deslopments rediticg to COVID-19 sed e oordingting their
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global heatth orgarizations,
relevant gowernments, and general pandemic nesponse best praclioes.

Owr Febw upry 24, 2022, Russis bsundbed a military iression mto Lirsine. Russia®s invasion of Ulrsine canies significant risks
for 8 world econormy that has yet 1o fully recereer from the impacts of the global COVID-19 pardemic. The impact of the
orsetuentiol geo-polticsl stability, finsncial market volatility, and impotition of tenctians on the ity are not possible
te fonezast 81 this time

COPMITRENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Ir the pormal course of busbess, the Trostee on behall of the Fund may erter ino cortracts that contain & variety of
representations and warrariet and which provide general indemnificstions. The generd indesmnificitions apply ot anly
e the extert such repretentations and warrarties are unbiue but sl may cover third paries such & the Furd's
Admiristrator, Auditor or wvestrment Manager Sor cliims related to the services performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
PN Exposuie LNGEr By Sudh ancangements B urknown, 85 eposure only anses 1o the extert future daims the
hawe not yet oooured are mede agains the Trstes. M - beaied o e i, the Trustee expidts the ik of ks to
b remot e

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performes 8 subkeguent svens review up 1o uly 26, 2022, whish is the date the financial stotements wire
rvailable 1o b ued.

Effective March 1, 2002 thvough July 36, 2032, there were subsoriptions of USD 1718 o respes of JPY Monthiy
Distribution Class snd there were subsoriplisns of USD G659 848 in retpect of 1P Servi-frmusl Distributicn Clais, there were
subseriptions of USD 4335 in respect of LSO Manthly Distribution Class, there were subsariptions of USD 100,256 in
redpect of USD Semi-Annual Diribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2022 through luly 26, 2002, there were fedempliond of USD 93,995 in respect of IPY Monthly
Distribution (lass and thene wers redemptions of USD 323,852 in respect of 1PY Semi-Anrual Distribution Oass, there were
redemption of USD 385997 in retpect of USD Moeathly Distribation Oasd, there were rederrplfions of USD 522,733 in
respet of USD Sem-Annusl Distriwation Olass,

There were distributionrs of USD 22453 in respect of JFY Morihly Deribotion Oass, There wane distributions of LUSD
115,204 in redpect of JPY Semi-Arnud Distribution Clds, There were dstributions of USD 1 066 in respect of USD
Mdeant by Dirs tri bution Class, There wer @ cistributions of LSO 67,209 in respest of LSO Semi-Anrual Distribution Class,

Thiere are no other agrificent events 1o feport 25 they rdate to the Fund,
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2023
51,784,059.24 7,508,170,749
287,616.98 41,701,586
51,496,442.26 7,466,469,163
114,071
917,386
47,044
736,733
8.27 1,199
8.90 1,290
7,454
7,840
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2022 31
2022 2021
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
2,439,355 353,682 1,941,186 281,453
70,125 10,167 71,250 10,331
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
114,502 16,602 218,179 31,634
168,009 24,360 156,805 22,735
1,337,097 193,866 1,183,495 171,595
365,000 52,921
1,984,608 287,748 1,558,479 225,964
480,000 2022 31
2021 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,476,078 1,373,937 7,920,957 1,148,460
9,956,078 1,443,532 8,400,957 1,218,055
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
2022 16
129332
144.99
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2022 31
2022 2021
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
2,439,355 353,682 1,941,186 281,453
70,125 10,167 71,250 10,331
11,940,686 1,731,280 9,959,436 1,444,019
1 0.145 1 0.145
1 0.145 1 0.145
11,940,687 1,731,280 9,959,437 1,444,019
114,502 16,602 218,179 31,634
168,009 24,360 156,805 22,735
1,337,097 193,866 1,183,495 171,595
365,000 52,921
1,984,608 287,748 1,558,479 225,964
480,000 2022 31
2021 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,476,079 1,373,937 7,920,958 1,148,460
9,956,079 1,443,532 8,400,958 1,218,055
11,940,687 1,731,280 9,959,437 1,444,019
2022 16
129332
144.99
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2022 31
2022 2021
17,934,583 2,600,335 18,599,369 2,696,723
17,934,583 2,600,335 18,599,369 2,696,723
(2,125,733) (308,210) (1,225,898) (177,743)

(13,544,787)  (1,963,859) (15,229,787)  (2,208,167)
(245,193) (35,551) (227,557) (32,993)
(15,915,713)  (2,307,619) (16,683,242)  (2,418,903)

2,018,870 292,716 1,916,127 277,819
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)

1,920,121 278,398 1,904,627 276,152

(365,000) (52,921) (182,200) (26,417)

1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735

1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735

144.99
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2022 31

¢ > ¢ ¢ >y > >y )

2021 480,000 69,595 7,920,957 1,148,460 8,400,957 1,218,055
1,555,121 225,477 1,555,121 225,477
2022 31 480,000 69,595 9,476,078 1,373,937 9,956,078 1,443,532
144.99
2022 31
2022 2021
1,555,121 225,477 1,722,427 249,735
98,749 14,318 11,500 1,667
365,000 52,921 182,200 26,417
2,018,871 292,716 1,916,127 277,819
(132,044) (19,145) 909,296 131,839
171,551 24,873 (394,011) (57,128)
(475,422) (68,931) (101,297) (14,687)
1,582,955 229,513 2,330,115 337,843
1,582,955 229,513 2,330,115 337,843
7,947,000 1,152,236 5,628,385 816,060
(98,749) (14,318) (11,500) (1,667)
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
144.99
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2022 31
3096T
IFRS
IFRIC 2022 31
IFRS 1ASB IFRIC
IFRS  IASB IFRIC
() )
)
12
2022 31 2021 31
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12
30
2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
100
190
2022
17,934,583
2022 31
2022 2021
19 2021 19 (365,000) (182,200)
(365,000) (182,200)
(365,000) (182,200)
2022 31 2021 31
2022 2021
2021 10 21 22 1,920,122 958,983

19 2021 19

(365,000) (182,200)




2021
2021

10

441,903

2023

2022

2021
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467,911

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
ooooodooodnoooooodd

2021

150/220

(365,000) (182,200)
19.0 19.0
25
31
30
2022 31
44,190 2021 46,791



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
2022 31 a
( ) ( )
1,453,679 474,263
7,323,113 520,898
3,429,574 246,312
1,227,939 86,759
110,482 8,865
106,095
13,650,882 1,337,097
2021 31
2021 31 a
( ) ( )
1,422,718 120,838
8,299,627 720,942
3,786,710 210,652
1,556,076 120,670
164,656 10,393
106,470
15,336,257 1,183,495
(a
(b
(c
2022 31 80,000 2021 80,000
http://www.smth.jp/en/
2021 12 2022
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NIEEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Note 22 2021
USD USD

Assels
Current Assets

Cash and cash equvalents 9431204 7,247,000

Accounts receivable 2,439,355 1,941,186

Accrued moome and prepard exp age 0125 71,250
Total Current Assets 11,540,656 Q050 436
Total Mon-Current Assets - -
Total Assers 11,940,686 Q950 436
Liabilities and Equity
Current L iabilities

Accrued ecpenses and defarred mcome 114,502 218179

Acoounks payable 168,005 156,805

Armounts parable o alfltes 1,337.097 1,182495

Amounts payable to affiliates — group ta relief J65,000
Total Current Liabilities 1984608 1558479
Equity

Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Hokders of the

Company

Share capital (51 par vahie, 480,000 shares

athorized, 430,000 sharesizssed and  cutstanding a8 31 450,000 450,000

Barch 2022 and 2021

Eetamed eamings 2476078 7,920,957
Total Equity D98GR 8400957
‘Total Linbilities and Equity 11,540,636 99509436

The annexed nobes from 1 to # form an mtegral part of these fmancal satements

These financil statements were spproved by the Board of Directors on 16 Seplember 2022 and autheorised for 1szue and signed on
1ts behalf by

DocuSigned by:
[ OFESAFCTIREAFE

D Cruis=
Director

Company registered mumber 129332
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Note 022 2021
USD USD
Acsrts
Curremt Assets
Cazh and cagh equmalents 431,206 7,947 000
Acooumts pecers able 2439355 1,841,186
Acerued income and prepand expense 0025 71,250
Total Current Assers 11,540,686 9,950 436
N Current Assets
Inw esterent in subsidiary 3 1 1
Total Hon-Current Assels 1 1
Total Assets 11,540,687 9950437
Liabilitles and E quity
Current L iabilities
Accrued expenses and deferred moome 114,502 218,179
Accoumts payable 168,008 156,805
Amounts payable to affilistes 1,337,097 1,183 455
Amounts payable to affiliates = group tax relief 365,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,584,608 1558479
Equity
Capltal and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company
Share capital (81 par value, 480,000 shases authorized,
450,000 shares 155ued and outdandmg at 31 March 2022 and 40,000 450,000
20213
Retarned eammgs PATETE 7520958
Total Equity 2,956,079 8,400,958
Total Liahilitles and Equity 11,540,687 0,950 437

The annexed notes frorn 1 to @ form an mtegral part of these fnancial gatements

Thesa fnancn| staternents were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Septamber 2022 and authonised for 1zmue and signed on

itz behalf by
Deculigned by

EQEDTTISEAFF .
Director

Company registered ramber: 120332
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREEHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note . | el 2021
15h 15D
Operating Revenues
Investment management and advisory fees from thind parties 4 17,934 563 18599369
Total operating rvenies 17,934,583 18599362
Cperating Expenses
Sub-advisory fets with thard parties (2,125,733 (1,225,899)
Sub-advisory fees with group undentakmngs (13, 544,757) (15,228,787)
Citheer operating and admenistrative expenses 245 193) (227 55T)
Total operabing eqenses (15.915713) (16 683 24 1)
Operating Profit 2,018 870 1916127
Other (Expenses)
Het foreign exdange (oss) (28,749 (11,5000
Total cther mcomeferpenss (FET45) (11,500)
Profit Before Income Tax 1,920,121 1904627
Incomie tax expense 5 (365 0000 (182,200
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,555,121 1,722427
Cheer Comprehensr e Incorne for the year
Total Comprefensive Incorme for the year 1,555,121 1, 722427

All the Group®s operatsons are classabied as continuing

The snnewed notes Bom 1to 9 form an ntegral part of these favancial 2atements
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NIEKKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
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Share Eetained
Heme Capital Earnings Total
UsSh LAk K Ush
Balance at 1 April 2021 480,000 T 95T 2,400,557
Other comprehensive medme for the year - 1,555,121 1,555,121
Balance at31 March 2022 0,000 9476073 9956078

The annesed notes Form 1 4o 9 form an mtegral part of thesa Foarncis] gabements
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Cash Flows Trom Operating Activities
Frofit alter tax

Adjustments for

Het foregn exchange loss

Tax charge

Cperational cash fows before movements in
workmg capital
Chnnges in operating aseets and liab Dities

(ncreaself Decreage m recerables
Incregsef (Decrease) m payables
Income tix paid

Het Cash Generated from Operating Activities

et Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, begmning of the year
Effect of exchange rate fluctustions on cash held

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year

Note

157/220

022
—  USD

1,555,021

S8, T4
365,000

2018271

(132,044)
171,551
(475420

1582085

1,582,955

7,547,000

(23,745}

9431206

The anneed notes Bormn 1to 2 form an edegreal part of these faaneis] gatements
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1, 722427

11,500
182,200

1916127

W05, IeE
(3%4,011)
Q00,257

2.230,115

230,115
5 628,385
{11,500

547,000
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NIEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 1 - General Information

ikl AM Clobal Cayman Lid *the Company™) and 22 asbadiey (ogether “the Croup™) are moorporated ad dormzaled m the
Cayman [slands The sddress of the regdered office 15 PO Box 3090T, Ugland House, South Church Strest, Grand Cyyman, Cayrran
Isisnds The prnepal actvibies of the Group and Company dunng the vesr wene the provizion of mv estrent advice and meedment
managemnent services bo thrd parties and other growp members

Node 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The pancipal acomntmg polices adopbed are 52t cutbelow

Basis of preparation

TheOroup and Cornparry's financial statements have been prepared m scoordance with Uk-adopted imemational acoounting gandards
(UK -adopted IFF.S) and IFRIC intempretations applicsble to compantes reporting under IFRS. As at 31 March 2022, the Company had
adopted all IFREs and interpretations that had been aued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("LASE") and International
Financial Reportmg Interpretations Commmdtes ¢ FRICT) The sccountmg policies se out below have been spplied conngdently to all
periods presented m these fnsnceal staternents. [FRS: camprise sccambing sandards ismied by the LASE and ils predacessor body a2
well as interpretations issued by the IFRIC and its predecessorbody

In prepanng this set of fnancial daternents, the Company prepared pliusible downside scenanos such as reduction n ey enues due to
global mirket declmes resulbing from the pandemzc. The directors hive adopted the going concem basis of preparation i prepanng
these fmanicial statements for the follosing reasons: 1 the Company has sufficient capital ressrvec to with=tand several years of Josses,
1) the Cormpany has a highly hquid balance sheet with cash reserves at the year-end, and u1) the Cornpany’s fxed expenoe base 15
relatwely low. As a reml, the directors have o reasonable expectation that the Company has adequste resources to continue s
operatsons for at least 12 months from the date of these financial statements Therefore they contimae to adopt the going concem basis
in preparing theseaccounts.

Basis of consolidation

Subadianes are entities cortrolled by the Group, Contral exists when the Geoup has the power to govem the fmanasl and cperalmg
policies of an entity so asto cbtain benefits from its activities In assessmg control, the Group takes mto conmderation pobential votng
rights that are currently exencisable The acquisition date i3 the date on which contrel is transferred to the aoquirer, The financial
statements of subsidianies are neluded in the consolidated bnancial staternents froem the date that coatrol comnences unkil the date
that condrol omases Losses apphoableto the non-controlling interests in a subaidaary are allocabed to the non-controllng interests «ven
1f doing 5o cawses the non-controdling mterests o hav e & deficitbalance

New accounting standards adopted
The direchors donct consader that any new sccourthing sandards had & mabenal impact on the Cormpany in the airent year

Measurement conyention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention

Estirnates and asamaptions

The preparation of financial gatements requires the directors bo make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assets and liabalibies ag st the balanee sheet dste and the amounts reparted For revenues mnd expenses during the year The nature of
estimation means that actual cutoomes could differ from those estrnates The asumplions and egtimates, which are continucushy
reviewed, are based on pat ecpenence and other factors, meluding expectations regarding hikely developments in the future At 31
Mirch 2022 and 2021 there were no malenal estomate: o assimplions

Avcounts receivahle

Accaumntsrecevable inchide amounts dus formanagement, advisory and performance fees and amounts dus from customers and others
All accounts recervable are pepayable on demand or within one year. They are recorded m the balance sheet at cod, reduced by
appropraate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts, and they are interest bearing

Accounts payahle

Accounts payable inchude amounts due for sub-advisory services and performance fees and amounts due to vendors and others. All
acoounts payable are classified according to the substance of the conbractual amrangement entered nto. They are payable on demand
or wihin one year and are recorded on the balance sheet at cost Anmounds owed to group undertalangs are unsecured, mierest free and
have no fived bermes of repayment.

Cush and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equmvalents comprise cash o banks snd i hand &nd shortdermn deposits with an onginal mahirty of three months o
legs and forerpn umenses held by the Geougr and Company. For the purposes of the cash flow gaternent, cash aned cash equivalents
conzist of cash and cagh equivalerts as defined sbove, net of cuttanding banl overdrafls

Operating revenues
Cperatimg reverues include inrestment management, myestment advisory and performance faes. Operabing revenes are measured at

the far value of the consuderation recerved or receiwable for services provided m the normal course of busmess, net of dsoounts, tral
foes, VAT and other sales related taxes
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NIEKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles { continued)
Operating revenues (continued)

Invesdtment sramagement and advisery fees and assocaated chargesare recogrised when the sevices concemad srerenderad Investrment
managemnent and adviscry fees are caloulated as a percentage of assets under management. Commissions are recognised on & trade
date basis, caloulated on a percentage of the mle Performance fees are recogrised m the period in which they become due and
collectable

Operating expenses
Cperating expenses are zecounted for when they become payable

Current and deferred come tax
Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and defermed tax. Tax 2 recogrussd in the statement of corpreheansme income
eteept to the extent that it relates b dems recopmsed dmectly in aquity, m whach cage # 12 recopnised m agquaty

Current tax 12 the expectad (o paysble or recenrable on the towable income or losz for the year, usng (e rates enacted or aubslantwely
enacted at the balance sheet date, and sy adpustment totax payable in respect of previcusyears

The Company may utilise cument tax cradits arising on losses in cther Group entities agamst its tax charges

Draferned tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverabie on differences bebween the carmying amounts of assets and labalities m
the staternent of financaal position and the comesponding bax bases used m the computation of taxable proft. Defemed tax 15 accounted
for using the statement of financial position liabality method Deferred ta lkabilities are generally recognised for all tacable temporany
differences and deferred tiw asssts are recognized to the extent that it iz probable that tawsble profite will be available against which
deductible ternporary differences can be utihized.

Foreign carrencies
The functional and presentational cusrency of the Group end Company 15 U2 dollars (8)

Transactions 1n currencies other than U3 dollars gre cecorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transadhions. AL
each balance shed date, monetary sssets and lisbilibesthat sre denommnated in foreign currencies ane retranslabed at the rates prevailmg
on the balance sheet date Non-monetary assets and habalities camrved at fair vakue that are denorminated mn formign curmencies ane
teanslated 3 the rabes prevaling at the dute when Fasr valus was determnined. Chures and logses asinng on retranslation are inchided o
net profit or loss for the pened, except for exchings differences anang on non-mondary asseds and hataldies where the changes in
Eaar walee are recogrised directly m squity.

Financlal instrurments
The vast ragority of the Company's Anancial ingrenents are cash and receivables which are mexsured at arncetised cost.

The Company has evaluated potential aredit losses on all financial assets that are measured at smorticed cost Factors considersd m
determining whether a default iz likely or possible inchude whether a payment iz overdue (and the length of that persod), any known
detenceatsion m the credit quality of a clientfoecunterparty or cther issues that could adversely affect a client’s'oounterparty’s cradit
qualiy

For fmancial assets where there 12 no known issues affecting coedit quallty, expected oredit loszes are caloulsted based on the losses
that are expected to be meurred over a rolling twebre-rmonth penod. Gaven the nature of the Company's Bnancial azsds (Le meostly
cazh atbank), there s avery bow credit rgk. The Commpiny 15 3150 consdermg thewse of money market funds to norease diversification
and further reduce credit sk

For any fmancul aceets where the contractual payment is moee than 30 days past due, the default pootion is to assume an increase m
aedit nisk Hewever, default levels in the past have beemn snmaterial and there were ne fee recerrables past due asat 31 March 2022

Investments n subsidiaries
Invezstments m subsidianes are dated in the parent company’ s balance sheel at codt bess any provisions for mgasmment

At each statement of financial posttion dabe, the Company reviews the carryng amounts of its investments to deterrmine whether

there iz any indication that thoee assets have suffered impairment 15 any =uch indication exists, the recorerable smount of the
invedtment is eimated m order to determme the extent of any impaiment
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
Note 3 - Investment in Sub sidiary

Ab 31 Murch 2022 and 31 March 2021 the Company had an e estment of $1. In the opanicn of the drectors, the Cormpany’ 5 mvestment
15 nct mpamed Details of the mv estment are as follows:

HNumber, class and

Coumtry of percentage of shares
Trpnctan —ncorportion  Princhpaladiviy —held by the Company,
Mikdco AM (Cayrran) Ltd Cl'ﬂf";‘:"; General partner 1 Ttw 0;?

The subgidhary's regridered address 12 190 Elgin Avens, Gebrge Town, Grand Cayman, Cayinan Izlands

Note 4 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revernze relates to the provision of investment adv ice and v estment management services: In the following table, revenue 15
dizaggregated by peenary geographical market

Coumitry 2622 2021
15D USD
Cayman Islands 17,734,583 18,599,369

Note & — Taxation
Taxes on mecome for the year ended 31 darch 2022 were as follows:

2022 . i v |
s USD
Current Tax
UE comporation bax at 19%% (2021 19%%) based onnet pevenue % (3650000 F {153, 200%
Total Current Income Tax Expense (365,000} {182,200}
Total Income Tax Expense S Gespon § _ Eaaon

A reconcilistion betwesn the amount of tax expense at the effective stalutory rate and taves on income &= reflectad in contirning
opatzons for the years ended 31 hdarch 2022 and 2021 15 presented below

Tax Reconciliation

Profit befors taxes (2021 Profit before tax for pered Ot 21 —Mar 22) £ 1920122 % 958,553

Profit multiplied by the fandard rate of composation tase e the TR 1984

(2021; 1995 —(FER000) (L2000
2002 2021

Total Income Tax Expense (365.000) {152 200

EfTective tax rate for the vear 19.0%% 19.00%

In the 2021 Spring Budget, the Govemment announced that from 1 Apnil 2023, the mamn rate of UK corporation tax rate will increase
to 25%. This was substantively enacted in May 2021 and will have a conzequential effect on the Company's future tax charge The
Cormpany nfends bo utilise current tax credst froem ofher entities in the wider Nikko Group in the yesr to offset the Company's current
tax expense The amount due to afilistes for group tiee relef i2 included a2 a payable m the staternent of financaal position
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NIKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 6 — Financial Risk Factors

The Croup snd Company’s finameal instrarments comprize cash and cadh equavalents and recemable and payable balances that ase
froen A2 dmly operabions All cash and cash equivalents are carmied ab cost which is considerad bo sppresirnate to fair value duets the
shert term matusity of these financial mstruments The mam nsks associated with the Growp and Company’ s financial assets and
Tiabalities are set out below

Credit risk

Credit nsk 15 defined as the rige of financial less dus to a counterparty’s fashare to honour s obligation principally in relation to
transactsons where the Group or Compary prosides goods or sarvices on deferred terms and where it invests or deposits surphus cash
The Group or Company o not believe that they sre materially exposed to credit risk as its sales deblors are managed group funds and
therefore rnanagement and performance fees receivable are govemed by its agreements with these linds Tomubigate any remdual nge
of these aszets fahng to be delvrered, the Group and Company ensure that the tesms of these agreements in relataon Lo payments of
managemnant and perforrnance foas are adhered bo by monftorng its sged debtor snalpsis againg the agreed service level agresments.

Thedroup and Company adapts the policy of deabing with customers of sppropriate credit history, Forother financial asests the Group
and Cormpany adopts the policy of dealing with fmancaal metibutions and cther counterparties with high credit ratings Thee &re no
financial assets past due and f or mpased a5 ab 31 March 2021 and 2020 Trade recervables are due ab least quarterly, and ane nommally
settled withm 30 days of thewr dus dabe There are no overdus trads recen ab les at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard bo bk deposits, the Group md Company only deposits money with spproved counteparties on agreed tems

Market risk

Market ride (or systemic risk) i defired as that ride which i3 corrmen to an entire class of azsets or labilities whereby theirvalue can
Ehucthte simply because of economis changes or other events that impact large portions of the market. The Group and Company do
not believe that they are exposed to matenal market mg: as the assetz the Group and Company manage are held by snd for the benefit
of fund holders through separate legal entitres.

Currency risk

Currency risk i dafined a5 the na hat the valoe of assets and labilitses deporenated in aireencies ofhier than e furctiona] aerensy
of the Company will dange m value dus to movenents in foragn enchange rates The Group and Company 15 exposed bo asrency
risk ansing from cash balance: and fses recervable i vanows curenaes

Lauring the year any foreygn exchange nsk on the Company's fees recetvable and payable 15 mitigated by the use of derwatve
indriments, speafaally foreard foregm exchange contracts

TheCompany' s total expeoaure to currency risk aricing from cash balances and fees receivable in ofher currencies, after forwand
exchange confracts, is 3441 503 (2021: $467,911) Asat 31 March 2032, had these currencies srengthened! weakened by 10% againd
the U0, the total egposure would have been higher Mlower by spprox £44, 120 (2021 $46,721)

Liguidity risk and financial sobvency risk

Liquidity ridk 1z defined a2 the rack that the Group or Company will not be able to meet £2 financial chligations a2 they fall due The
Oroup and Coerpany” npprmdi to rransging this rk i 1o ensure that it hae sufficient liquadity to meet its habalities when due, both
under normal and dressed oomditions

Capital management

The Group and Company capital pesibion 12 mertored on an ongoing basis Lo enmare tat 12 adequate. There are no ademally
imposed capital requirements.
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Note 7 — Related Party Transactions

NIEKQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Transachions bebwesn the Growp and Company and relabed parties are dizclosed below

Year ended 31 March 2022

Hikko Asset Management Armericas, Inc
HNikko Asset Management Eupope Ltd
Wik Aseet MManagement Co , Lid
Mikdeo Aot Mumagement Asia Ld
Mikko Asset Minagement Hong Kong
Highwater Lirruted

Total

Year ended 31 March 2021

Hikdeo Asset benagement Americas, Ine
Wikdko Ascet bdanagement Eurcpe Lid
Mildeo Asset Manngement Co, Lid
Hikko Asset Management Asia Lid
Hikko Azset Management Hong Kong
Highwater Lamited

Total
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Operating Creditor as at 31
Expenses (a} March 2022{h}
UsD UsD
1453613 474,263
731313 IL0EeE
342954 246312
1,227 ,93% 95759
110,482 2865
106,055
13,650,882 1357007
Operating Creditor as at 31
Expenses (a) March 2021 ()
UsD usD
1422718 120,838
£,2089427 720,542
3,786,710 210,852
1,556,076 120,670
164 636 10,393
106,470
15,336,257 1L1B3 495

(ay Operating expenses paid to related parties ape payable under invedtment managernent agresments and are for fund managerment

b

(b} The amounts cutstandug, i the above table relate bo cpavabing expenses, are unasazed and will be sellled i cash Hoguarmbes:
hawe been gren or recesved. Mo provisions have been made fordoubtful debis mrespect of the amounts owed by related parfies

ey Amounts payable o affiliates relatng to group ta relief are not inchuded m the ameunts cutgandng inthe above table bt are
ncluded m the statement of fmancial positbion

Eemuneration of key management personnel 31 March 2022 was USEE0,000 2021 TS 30,0000

Mikko Asset Management Cio, Ltd 15 the intermediate parent company of the Company. Hikko Asset Managemnent Amerscas, Inc,
Mikko Aszet Management Europe Lid , Nikdo Asset Managemnent Azia Lid and Mikko Aszet Management Hong Flong are fellow
subsidianes of the Cornpany. Nideo Asset Management Co., Lid 15 an mdirect shareholder of the subsidianies. Highwater Limted
prow ide director, company secrdtarial and other services to Nikloo AN Global Cayrran Lid

MNote 8 - Ultimate Holding Company

The Cornpany” s srmediate parent 12 Widcke AL Global Heldings Limbed, & company located o the United Kmgdom The Copany
15 3 subsidsary undertakang of Surmitorms Mitan Trust Holdings, Ino whach 15 the wibmate parent company in Japan

The largest grovp in which the results of the Company are consolidated 15 that headed by Sumitomo Mitsus Trust Heldngs, Inc, 1-1-
2 Marunaechi, Chayoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan The conzobdated Foancial gaterments of thas group are avmlable to the publich

ki Mererer guth ol

Mote 9 — Subsequent Events

In Decerrber 2021, the directoes resclved to voluntanly wind up its subsidiary, Hikko AMd (Cayrnan) Limaed 1L was subsequently
deemried o be dizzolved by the Asmiaet Repigrant of Companes, Cayrren Islands on 2 May 2022 There were no other svents,
ubzequent to the taternent of firancial position date, which had an immpact on the consclidated snd mdividual fmancial atements of

the Cormpany
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2022 30

2022 30 2022 31
10,096,630 1,463,910 9,431,206 1,367,431
1,299,809 188,459 2,439,355 353,682
24,700 3,581 70,125 10,167
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
114,505 16,602 114,502 16,602
128,968 18,699 168,009 24,360
882,504 127,954 1,337,007 193,866
(83,206) (12,064) 365,000 52,921
1,042,771 151,191 1,984,608 287,748

480,000 2022 30
2022 31
480,000 480,000 69,595 480,000 69,595
9,898,368 1,435,164 9,476,078 1,373,937
10,378,368 1,504,760 9,956,078 1,443,532
11,421,139 1,655,951 11,940,686 1,731,280
144.99
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2022 30
2022 30 2022 31
6,439,970 933,731 17,934,583 2,600,335
6,439,970 933,731 17,934,583 2,600,335
(847,404) (122,865) (2,125,733) (308,210)
(4,845,798) (702,592) (13,544,787)  (1,963,859)
(11,426) (1,657) (24,386) (3,536)
(129,187) (18,731) (220,807) (32,015)
(5,833,815) (845,845) (15,915,713)  (2,307,619)
606,155 87,886 2,018,870 292,716
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
521,290 75,582 1,920,121 278,398
(99,000) (14,354) (365,000) (52,921)
422,290 61,228 1,555,121 225,477
422,290 61,228 1,555,121 225,477

144.99
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2022 30
¢ >y ¢y ¢ >y c > Cc )y D
480,000 69,595 7,920,957 1,148,460 8,400,957 1,218,055
1,555,121 225,477 1,555,121 225,477
480,000 69,595 9,476,078 1,373,937 9,956,078 1,443,532
422,290 61,228 422,290 61,228
480,000 69,595 9,898,368 1,435,164 10,378,368 1,504,760
144.99
2022 30
2022 30 2022 31
606,155 87,886 2,018,871 292,716
(84,865) (12,305) (98,749) (14,318)
1,184,971 171,809 (132,044) (19,145)
(941,837) (136,557) 171,550 24,873
764,424 110,834 1,959,628 284,126
(99,000) (14,354) (475,422) (68,931)
(99,000) (14,354) (475,422) (68,931)
665,424 96,480 1,484,206 215,195
9,431,206 1,367,431 7,947,000 1,152,236
10,096,630 1,463,910 9,431,206 1,367,431

144.99
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2022 30
3096T
EU IFRS
IFRS IFRIC
2022 31 IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC EU
IFRS  1ASB
IFRIC
) )
)
12
2022 30 2022 31
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2022 30 2022 31
2020 10 19
2022
30 2022 31
30
2022 30 10
8,900
2022 30 2022 30
2022 30 a
@ ®) ®)
C ¢ ¢ C
687,959 97,843
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2,660,069 546,820

1,000,943 162,818

446,667 66,774

50,160 8,249

4,845,798 882,504

2022 31 2022 31
2022 31 a
@ ® ®
C O C O C O C O

1,453,679 474,263

7,323,113 520,898
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Series
Trust™), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2023, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2023, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 16, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (““the company””) for the
year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company ”s affairs as at 31 March
2022 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)”?) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 21 June 2022. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going
concern period”?).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company ”s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.
Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company®s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company®s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
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Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,

an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors® Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been

released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company ”s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.
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Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the

time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

Date: 20 September 2022
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Fund"),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of
February 28, 2022, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash
flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related notes (collectively

referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as of February 28, 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in
its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the

relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

212/220



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund ”s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Fund s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 26, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (““the company””) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company ”s affairs as at 31 March
2021 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going
concern period””).

In our evaluation of the directors ™ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company *s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company ”s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are

not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
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Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.

Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.

218/220



EDINETOOOO
000000 00000000000000(E27078)
OoooO0O0ooO0oooooodood
Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors” Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company ”s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
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so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability

in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

Date: 3 December 2021
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